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Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 72, is Chairman of
the Company. After obtaining a Bachelor of Engineering
degree (Chemical Engineering) in Canada in 1959, he
spent three years as a lecturer at the Hong Kong
Technical College until 1964 when he founded the
Company.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 43, son of Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang, was appointed to the Board as an
Executive Director on 15th September 1997. He
graduated from the University of Manchester Institute
of Science & Technology in 1987, and joined the
Company in the same year. He worked as an engineer,
project coordinator, engineering manager and then
General Manager for operations.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 42, son of Mr.
Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed to the Board as
a Non-executive Director on 18th July 2001 and an
Executive Director on 19th April 2002. He became a
Deputy Executive Chairman on 19th April 2007. Mr.
Wong holds a Bachelor degree in chemical engineering
and a Master degree in economics. He is a U.S.
Certified Public Accountant (CPA), a Certified
Management Accountant (CMA) and is certified in
financial management (CFM). He is an independent
non-executive director of Fulbond Holdings Limited,
BEP International Holdings Limited and Artfield Group
Limited.

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, GBS, JP, LLD, DH, aged
75, brother of Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, has been a
director of the Company since 1973. Dr. Wong is a
consultant of a Hong Kong firm of solicitors and is
also a Notary Public and a China Appointed Attesting
Officer. Dr. Wong is also a non-executive director of K.
Wah International Holdings Limited and a director of
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited.
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Mr. Huang, Zhouchang, aged 43, was appointed as
one of our Non-executive Directors on 1st August 2002.
Mr. Huang graduated from Zhongshan University in
1987 and completed his Master of Laws (LL.M) in 1990
from China University of Political Science & Law. Mr.
Huang joined China North Industries Guangzhou
Corporation in 1990 and during his years with Norinco
— Guangzhou, he held the positions of departmental
manager, deputy general manager and general
manager. Mr. Huang left Norinco — Guangzhou Branch
to take up his responsibility as the managing director
of Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd.

Mr. Qiang, Wenyu, aged 35, was appointed as one of
our Non-executive Directors on 1st April 2003. Mr.
Qiang graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology
in 1994 and joined the service of China North Industries
Corporation in 1995. In 2003, Mr. Qiang assumes office
as the Assistant General Manager of Silver City
International (Holdings) Ltd. and the General Manager
of Throne Star International Ltd.

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 65, was appointed
to the Board as an Independent Non-executive Director
in 1988. He is an entrepreneur with extensive
international experience in garment manufacturing and
trading. He is the founder of the Onwel Group of
Companies in 1969 and has been holding the position
of Executive Chairman since 1982.

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da, aged 48, joined in 1994 as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company.
He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the USA. He is currently the chairman and
managing director of Asialink Capital Limited. Prior to
that, he held senior positions with various international
financial institutions and was the managing director of
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fan is
an independent non-executive director of two other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng Yiu Ming, aged 71, was appointed to the Board
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 2nd July
2004. Currently, Mr. Ng is a Non-executive Director of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Ltd. He has over 40 years
of experience in hire purchase and leasing finance.
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| am pleased to present the Group’s annual result for
the year ended 31st December 2007. During the Year
2007, the Group’s electrical appliances business has
continued diversification in product mix as traditional
small appliances have seen a continual decline in gross
profit margin. U.S. market was adversely impacted by
lower consumer confidence as average consumers
spent less on small electrical appliances. Some of our
new products, such as the residential filtration systems,
suffered declining sales from a U.S. housing market
slow down.

Despite the difficult time in 2007, our Group is optimistic
of a turnaround in turnover and profits in 2008. Since
the beginning of 2008, we gradually launch new
innovative products as a result of our substantial
investment in innovation and research & development.
Our dedication to innovation and quality was recognised
by the Business Initiative Development (BID)
organisation in Spain and were awarded a gold and
platinum awards in September 2007 and April 2008
respectively.

As energy costs and paper pulp prices increased
substantially together with increased competition and
price war initiated by foreign cigarette paper companies,
the cigarette paper division suffered heavy losses and
had difficulty to service its debts. As a result, our Group
has decided to write off our investment in the paper
business and the related party loans, and booked a
charge for the total investment in Cheung Fung
Technology (Holdings) Ltd. (“Cheung Fung”).

For the financial year ended 31st December 2007, the
Group’s consolidated turnover was HK$843 million
compared with HK$956 million in the previous year,
representing a decrease of 12% in turnover, mainly
due to the discontinuation of low margins product lines.

The Group’s net loss is HK$45.5 million, mainly due to
a one time write off of the investment in Cheung Fung,
representing loss per share of 11.55 HK cents (our net
profit in 2006 was HK$48.2 million, with profit per share
of 12.4 HK cents).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Since the Group has a cash balance of HK$305.4
million at the year ended 31st December 2007, and
there are no suitable investment opportunities in the
manufacturing industry, and our management does not
intend to invest in business unrelated to our core
business, the Group decides to return part of the cash
to shareholders in the form of special dividends.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the
Board’s appreciation to all our staff for their hard work
and dedication throughout the year.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18th April 2008
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group remains sound. Its
current ratio was 4.06 as of 31st December 2007,
against 3.91 as of 31st December 2006.

During the year, the Group’s accounts receivable
turnover stood at 49 days in year 2007, compared with
50 days of the previous year. The inventory turnover
increased from 45 days in year 2006 to 49 days in
year 2007.

Bank balances and cash were HK$305.4 million as of
31st December 2007, representing a decrease of
HK$77.7 million over that of the previous year.

There are no bank borrowings as of 31st December
2007.

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31st
December 2007.

As of 31st December 2007, the Group had
commitments for capital contribution to subsidiaries
(authorised but not contracted for) of HK$47 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the share capital structure of the
Company has not been changed with details shown in
note 26 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors is recommending the payment
of a final dividend of 1 HK cent, making a total payout
of 6 HK cents per share for 2007 and a special dividend
of 20 HK cents per share (2006: total of 16 HK cents
per share and a special dividend of 10 HK cents per
share). The total amount of dividend appropriated,
based on the number of shares in issue, is HK$102.4
million (2006: HK$102.4 million).
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The book of transfers and register of member will be
closed from 2nd June 2008 to 6th June 2008, both
days inclusive during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend and special dividend, lodging of all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
not be later than 4:00 p.m. on 30th May 2008 with the
Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at 46th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
The final dividend and special dividend are payable on
17th June 2008 to members on register on 6th June
2008.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group has no charges on assets as of
31st December 2007.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The core business of the Group has continued to shift
from lower margin small appliances manufacturing to
higher margin environmental products. Strategically, our
direction is to weed out low margin, bigger size
products such as toaster ovens and develop smaller,
higher margin shaver products. In light of the continual
up-trend of raw material costs, labor and utilities costs,
appreciating Renminbi, and a less favorable business
environment for traditional small appliance product line,
the Group continues our E-100 cost savings initiative
to streamline production processes and material control
to improve production efficiency and realise more
operation cost savings. Our strategy to develop niche
market for higher margin products has resulted in our
close collaboration with local universities and European
inventors of new technologies.

In 2008 we will review our new product mix and
strategic plan to make our products more competitive
and profitable. We will explore business opportunities
in other new markets such as Latin America and China,
and search for new ways to form strategic partnership
with our customers. We now have a representative
stationed in Germany to continue to expand our
business in Europe. Meanwhile, we are in the process
of setting up new offshore operations to give us more
flexibility.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EBEEBNWRDMW

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 50 Hong
Kong staff members and operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme and defined contribution
pension schemes. Our factory in Mainland China
employs about 250 staffs, and workers employed
directly or indirectly varied from 3,000 to 4,000 persons
during the period. Remuneration is determined by
reference to the qualifications, experience and
performance of the staff.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in
US Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars and Reminbi. The Group
does not foresee any substantial exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations and thus use of financial
instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is not
considered.
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The directors submit herewith their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31st December 2007.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8
On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the sale of
electrical home appliances. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the financial year are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers during
the financial year are as follows:
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Percentage of
the Group’s total

TEBZEHEIR
Sales Purchases
HEHE KB
The largest customer SN S 41%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 76%
The largest supplier &AL ER 16%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AREEEEE 22%

None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers during the year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31st
December 2007 and the state of the Company’s and
the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 36 to 130.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Loss attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$45,494,543 (2006: profit of HK$48,234,066) have
been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

An interim dividend of 5 HK cents per share (2006: 5
HK cents per share) was paid on 16th October 2007.
The directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 1 HK cent per share (2006: 11 HK cents
per share) and a special dividend of 20 HK cents per
share (2006: 10 HK cents per share) in respect of the
year ended 31st December 2007.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$7,800 (2006: HK$7,800).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 26(c) to
the financial statements. There were no movements
during the year.
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Report of the Directors
BEEERE

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho
(resigned as director and deputy executive
chairman on 13th April 2007)

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin
(appointed as deputy executive chairman
on 19th April 2007)

Non-executive directors:
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang
Mr. Qiang, Wenyu

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Alternate directors:

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng
(alternate to Mr. Huang, Zhouchang)

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing
(appointed on 14th September 2007 as
alternate director to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, having been appointed to the board
after the date of the last annual general meeting, retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with article 95 of the Company’s Articles
of Association and, being eligible, offer himself for
election.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin,
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang and Mr. Leung, Michael Kai
Hung retire from the board by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offers themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the above articles.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 30 to the
financial statements, no contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

B )

BBRANARABERE 25 BEXELE B E
THRRBRELEEHNEERRAFASHESIK - il
PREBREEEE ERSESHERT -

EECRBEEHN

BEREERRBEAS LEAZESHEEARARAL
HEARRIIERAT AR —FALNREZREBELN
OCEEMERIN MELEZRBAH -

FATEZRAERENETHHR - BAREIA LGRS
£ o

EECENER

B R M RE 305N - EFERXAFEEMKHEAR - 13
EBRIVEARNBEBEAR  KAARARENER A
ERFTMNLRARBZEBMARRESTHER XMHEE
EETHREEARBLERZRN °



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EERAQRTA 2RO REBERDER

UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December 2007, the interests of the directors HR-_ZEELF+-_A=+—H SEERAQ A KEE
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and BxE (& REHFRBEKRD ([FHIEH])) 25 &
other associated corporations (within the meaning of MR @ RIBEAR R FKEFIKOIEISEMEE 2 E
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as mMFATSEEEE B BEAQRREEBN 2 ESIT ¢

recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company are as follows:

(i) Interests in issued shares (i) BITROER
Number of shares
RH#UE
% of total
issued
Personal Family  Corporate Share shares
interests interests interests options Total RRRS
BARE ZEER EEER BRE AR kR#tESE
(Note 1)
(1)
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BEA KA 4,576,008 150,000 91,313,597 - 96,039,605 24.38%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(it2) (7#3)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BEREAE 7,668,448 - - - 7,668,448 1.95%
Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho BEREEL 3,143,008 - 12,385,820 607,000 16,135,828 4.10%
(resigned on 13th April 2007)  (ZZZt &N A (Note 4) (Note?)
TZHER) (7#4) (7#7)
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin &N & %% 6,417,972 - - - 6,417,972 1.63%
Non-executive directors HHTEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang By SEL - 421,000 35,669,688 493,000 36,583,688 9.29%
(Note 5) (Note 6) (Note 7)
(i#5) (7%6) (7#7)

Mr. Huang, Zhouchang BEHEEHE 600,000
Mr. Qiang, Wenyu o8 3B % A 600,000
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
directors

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2R % & 3,694,300
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLELE 644,300
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming i 330,000
Alternate directors REZE

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRFEsAE -

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Re@ts -

600,000 0.15%
600,000 0.15%

3,694,300 0.94%
644,300 0.16%
330,000 0.08%



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i)

Interests in issued shares (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The shares are registered under the names of
the directors who are the beneficial

shareholders.

Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Mr.
Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, is the beneficial
shareholder.

These shares were held by Broadbridge
Enterprises Limited and Diamond-Harvest
Limited, both of which are wholly and beneficial
owned by Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae and his
spouse.

These shares were held through Limin
Corporation, a company controlled by Dr.
Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho.

Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertrude Kwok Cheung,
spouse of Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, is the
beneficial shareholder.

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the beneficial
shareholder of 50% of the issued capital of
Ho Kit Man Inc., which owned 35,669,688
shares in the Company.

Share options are granted to the directors
under the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
approved by the shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting on 6th June
2003. Details of which the Scheme was set
out in the section “Share option scheme” below.

All the interests disclosed under this section
represent long positions in the shares of the
Company.

EERADAZRORAEBR M EDS (5

(i)

TR S (B
et
(1) EBETERDEBETZ2EZTUHEHAEERR -

(2)

(5)

(6)

(7)

BRERNEEZRBFNELLR

ok

25T
ol

BIR -

=
B

ZERDNEBHBLANEERERBEREE
#% & ~ Broadbridge Enterprises Limited#
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i)

Interests in underlying shares

The directors of the Company have been granted
options under the Company’s share option
scheme, details of which are set out in the
section “Share option scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors
of the Company or any of their spouses or
children under eighteen years of age has
interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. FIRE#BBR /AR  Annual Report 2007 F
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to directors, employees and
other eligible participants specified under the Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
general meeting on 6th June 2003. Details of the
Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants
incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

Participants (i) Directors, employees of any

member of the Group or any
Controlling Shareholder of the
Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any company
controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

(ii) Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group
or any Controlling Shareholder
of the Company or any
company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder,

(iii) (a) any business or joint

venture partner,

contractor, agent or
representative of,

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to, or

(c) any customer or
distributor of goods or
services of,

any member of the group or
any controlling Shareholder or
a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder;

BRE

BREARARRE_ZTZT=FNANBRETZEHIRRER
Re btz BiEsta ([518l]) EF - BEREAM
BEBMATERTRERE BRI ZFBOT

B & EEZASERZSEERHEK
B ERHEAKED FH KRR
fE 2 B Bh#9 AR 2K 22 8D

S EE (i) AEBEEZMAKERRHNART

ZYERA R (TR IRR ) sz
BIRRAEF 2R ZESE -
EBE :

(i) FEAEBEEMKE - ZEBRK
R R AT 6l 2 2 & A
BOZENEZZITEAN

EREBRAIERH - &
BE - KERAR =

(iii) (a)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number
of shares
available for
issue and
the percentage
of the issued
share capital
that it
represents
as at the date
of the annual
report

Maximum
entitlement
of each
participant

Period within
which the
securities
must be
taken up
under an
option

Minimum period
for which an
option must
be held before
it can be
exercised

and for the purpose of the Scheme,
shall include any company
controlled by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above
classes of persons

1,215,000 shares and 0.31% of the
issued share capital

1% of the aggregate number of
shares in issue in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant

Within a maximum period of 10
years commencing from the date
of grant of such options

Not applicable

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. FIRE#BBR /AR  Annual Report 2007 F
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

Amount payable
on acceptance
of the option

Period within
which payments
must be made

21 days from the date of the offer

Basis of The higher of (i) the closing price
determining of the shares on the offer date or
the exercise (ii) the average closing price of the
price shares for the 5 trading days

immediately preceding the offer of
the option, provided that the
exercise price is not less than the
nominal value of the share

The Scheme remains in force until
5th June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated under terms of the
Scheme

The remaining
life of the
Scheme

At 31st December 2007, the directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (market value
per share at 31st December 2007 was HK$1.36)
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of
options granted under the Scheme. The options are
unlisted. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.50 each of
the Company.

BRE @

& 1B B v B BHELZBRERBBIT
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

BRE @

Market
No. of options value
EREZE per share
Held at the  Cancelled Outstanding Period at date
1st January during at the during which of grant
2007 the year year end options are Exercise of options*
R=2%t RER  RELH exercisable price per  RERE
£-A-H FHz  kfEz Date granted BRETTE share REAHZ
&% BRE®HE BREZE REAH 2B BRTEE BRHE
HK$ HK$
ETT T
Directors
Bz
Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho 607,000 (607,000) - 21st June 2005  21st June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
(resigned on 13th April 2007) “TThE 5th June 2013
BREEL AAZT-B ZEERFAA-T+-A
(CET+LEMATZBER) E-F-ZHRALA
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang 493,000 = 493,000 21st June 2005  21st June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
BRFBL —ZTRF 5th June 2013
ANAZ+t-B ZEZRFARA=1+-A
Z-Z-=F5xAAH
Employees 582,000  (30,000) 552,000 21st June 2005  21st June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
=] “ZTHE 5th June 2013
AAZT-R ZZTRREAAZT-H
e s i =
Other eligible persons 170,000 - 170,000 21st June 2005  21st June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
Htte &R AL “ZTR% 5th June 2013
AAZT—-A ZZRRESAZT-R
E-Z-=F,AAH
1,852,000 (637,000) 1,215,000

The options granted to the directors are registered
under the names of the directors who are also the
beneficial owners.

* being the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the
dates on which the options were granted or exercised,
as applicable.

Information on the accounting policy for share options
granted and the weighted average value per option is
provided in note 2(l)(ii) and note 26 to the financial
statements respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

According to the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under section 336 of the SFO as at 31st
December 2007, the Company had been notified of
the following substantial shareholders’ interests being
5% or more of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above
in respect of the directors:

BRE @

B EXFrE SN RAFAREMAER - AQF - KEE
A EARKFARNBARLIFEARARREZTAR
BEARASEMEMERRDKESF 22 ABE
Mtz ZBEZRTHTT »

FERRREAQXAZRORBER G 2 EH

BREREEZRNDESN RZFETLFT_A=1—
B REEFEIEIBPHEMREZETZRRELCM -
ARBEZRETIFEARRBEITRAS%KIA L2
WA

Number of shares

RGO EE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family shares
Substantial shareholders shareholders interests interest Total AR RT
FERR EETRRE EEER REED &5t BB ED=E
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai EMEZL 150,000 91,313,597 4,576,008 96,039,605 24.38%
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(it2) (F1)
Diamond-Harvest Diamond-Harvest 77,881,760 - - 77,881,760 19.77%
Limited Limited (Note 3)
(3£3)
Silver Talent Development BT ERBRAF - 53,080,800 — 53,080,800 13.48%
Limited
Allianz AG Allianz AG - 40,651,000 - 40,651,000 10.32%
Mrs. Wong Cheng, HEEEL T 421,000 35,669,688 493,000 36,583,688 9.29%
Gertrude Kwok Cheng (Note 4)
(3%4)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Ho Kit Man Inc. 35,669,688 - - 35,669,688 9.05%
(Note 5)
(:5)
Notes: Kiat -

(1) The shares were held by Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae,
spouse of Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, of which details
are set out in the “Directors’ interests in shares and
underlying shares” section above.

(1) ZEBGHEBEMEL L2 REELHLLHE o 5
BHESM ES 2 TEERAD A 2RI R ARG
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(2) These shares were held through Broadbridge
Enterprises Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited,
companies beneficially owned by Ms. Sun, Amelia
Kwing and her spouse, Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(3) These shares were held through Diamond-Harvest
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia
Kwing Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(4) The shares were held by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang,
spouse of Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung,
of which details are set out in the “Directors’ interest
in shares and underlying shares” section above.

(5) These shares were held through Ho Kit Man Inc., a
company controlled by Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude
Kwok Cheung and Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors
of the Company, as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on pages 131 and 132 of the annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Hong
Kong, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group were entered into or
existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31st December 2007,
which do not constitute connected transactions under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), are disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates two defined benefit retirement
schemes which cover 99.7% of the Group’s employees,
and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Particulars
of these retirement schemes are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited were first appointed as
auditors of the company in 2006 upon the retirement
of PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th April 2008
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The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance and reviews and strengthens corporate
governance measures from time to time. The Board
believes that shareholders can derive maximum
benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
save for a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code in respect of the service term of independent
non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election.

None of the existing independent non-executive
directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision
A.4.1 of the CG Code. However, all independent non-
executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association. The Company has
also received the annual confirmation of independence
from each independent non-executive director and has
grounds to believe that independent non-executive
director continues to be independent of the Company
as long as they serve on the board of the Company.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct for securities transactions by directors and has
adopted written guidelines no less exacting than the
Mode Code for application to senior management and
designated people who might have access to price
sensitive information of the Group.
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Following enquiries by the Company, all directors
confirm that that they have complied with the Model
Code for the year ended 31st December 2007.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure
includes the board and two committees under the
board, namely audit committee and remuneration
committee. The board stipulates the terms of reference
of all committees in writing and specifies clearly the
power and responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of three executive directors, three non-
executive directors, and three independent non-
executive directors (and two alternate directors), the
Board has an appropriate composition of directors. The
non-executive directors are each appointed on an
unspecified term. Please refer to page 12 of this annual
report for composition of the board of directors.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company
have complied with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and have presented annual confirmation of
independence issued pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules to the Company. The board has assessed
their independence and confirms that all independent
non-executive directors are independent parties as
defined in the Listing Rules. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai
Hung was appointed on 16th March 1988, Mr. Fan,
Anthony Ren Da was appointed on 12th December
1994 and Mr. Ng Yiu Ming was appointed on 2nd July
2004. The appointment of directors are not fixed for a
specified term, but at every annual general meeting,
they are subject to the retirement and re-election
requirements of the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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The family relationship among the directors are
summarized as follows:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman and Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang are brothers.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Dr. Wong, Kennedy
Ying Ho and Mr. Wong, John Ying Man.

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the father of Dr. Wong,
Kennedy Ying Ho and Mr. Wong, John Ying Man. and
uncle of Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin.

Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho and Mr. Wong, John Ying
Man are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin.

The directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The board convenes at least two regular meetings each
year (approximately each six months), and will convene
meetings when necessary. When a regular board
meeting is convened, the board documents will be sent
to the directors for review before the meeting pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the Code Provisions so that
directors can keep abreast of the information to perform
their duties and responsibilities. The board convened
9 meetings in 2007.
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The attendance of directors is as follows:

EEHERRAMOT

Attendance

HE

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings during

term of service Attendance
Director Name HESSBRE Rate
EESER FHASBERE HE =
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman) &% %5 4E (/&) 9/9 100%
Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho FEARE LT 1/4 25%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man =R AE 7/9 78%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin EXRBEE 9/9 100%
Non-executive directors FHITES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang BERTELT 2/9 22%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHESLE 4/9 44%
Mr. Qiang, Wenyu o8 S %k A& 2/9 22%
Independent non-executive directors B FHITEE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2 RNk A& 4/9 44%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BIESRE 5/9 56%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming h R 5 4 5/9 56%
Alternate directors RES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng A IF & 5F A& - -
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing REmEA 11 100%

The remuneration of directors is determined with
reference to their functions and responsibilities in the
Company, the performance of the Company and current
market conditions. Director is not allowed to participate
in determining his own remuneration. The remuneration
received by directors from the Company during the
year is set out in Note 9 of the financial statement.
The board has set up an independent professional
consulting procedure and upon reasonable request,
directors are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s
expenses.

EENMEN2ERSZTARARANBEREL - &K
RAEAIMKBAERBERNHAMEE - ENEE B2 HEF
EASHME - EFNAFERNAKRERBRNOMEFE
EERNMBEHRERMNTI - EFQEEL—EEFHMABIL
EXERNEFR BEFRAEEXR  AHEEENEBR
TSRBUEXER  BERAAXARRM -



AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director with
extensive experience in accounting or legal matters.
The audit committee established with specific written
terms of reference is mainly responsible for reviewing
the financial statements and annual and half-yearly
reports and accounts of the Company, submitting
relevant reports and recommendations to the board,
reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems and making
recommendations on the appointment and remuneration
of the auditors of the Company and any matters related
to the termination of appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael
Kai Hung is chairman of the audit committee and is
responsible for reporting the meeting results and
recommendations of the audit committee to the board
after each meeting.

In 2007, the audit committee convened 2 meetings.
Members and their attendance are as follows:

EREES

BERZECH-RBUFATEST R BN TESHA
Ko ESHIEETHAEELR BERZEEEKY
EREFTZEEFMARANMBERRMFEREF
FHREMER REFCRIMABREREERR - &
BIARE 2 MHEE - ABEEREREERGEIA
NAGBMNEET  FMREMEK I ZRAEEAEER
HiZE - RBELERBZZBEENIE AARER

B o

R_FTLF BLZEGHEAMAMREE KELR
BRT

Attendance

HE

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held

during the year Attendance
Member Name HESERH Rate
KE&BE FHANERAEY =
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) Z2RiIE %% (E/E) 2/2 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da WIELAE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming B E 2/2 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHELA 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the
year included reviewing the 2006 audited financial
statements and the annual results announcement,
reviewing the interim report for the six months ended
30th June 2007 and the interim results announcement,
considering the accounting standards adopted,
reviewing the explanatory letter about audit submitted
by the auditor to the management and the response of
the management, the basis of opinion and qualified
opinion made by the auditor in his report.

BEREZESEFEAMMNIEREEN ST FE
EERMBRINRFEXEERSE  BEH_TZLEXA
ZSTERNEANTHBEERTMEERS - ZEARMR
VEEER  BHZBMRERIERENEZIERNH AR
HREEEORE ZBMEEREEMENELEER

REERESFHE -



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, two executive
directors and one non-executive director. The
remuneration committee established with specific
written terms of reference, is principally responsible
for reviewing and approving remuneration plans for
directors and senior management, determining the
remuneration package of executive directors and senior
management, including benefits, pension interests and
the payment of compensation. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai
Hung is chairman of the remuneration committee and
is responsible for reporting the meeting results and
recommendations of the remuneration committee to the
board after each meeting.

In 2007, the remuneration committee convened 1
meeting. Members and their attendance are as follow:

FMESES

FHNEZEEH="2BYIFATES  MBEATESTR—
FIRTESTHENK - THEZESERUERAEEETER
BEENRMAEERSREERAENTMAIR - EEH
TEFEEREEENTMEE - BEMaE - RIKSE
SmMEEXN  RREALESFTMHEEENER A8
REBRAEZRRANESERETMEE SN SRERNE
EER -

St
8
M
=
il
X
B

RoTELE  FMEESLRT )
RERMT :

Attendance

HE

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held

during the year Attendance
Member Name HESRRE Rate
REEB FHREBERE HE R
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) ZRUHE £ (F/E) 11 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da WELAE 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming R £ 11 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHELA 11 100%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin EXRBEE 11 100%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system of
the Group, assessing performance of executive
directors, considering the salary adjustment for the year
and making recommendations to the board. The
remuneration committee also ensures that no director
or senior management member determines his own
remuneration.

FMEESEFTEMMOH TEEERTSENFHAE
B FHERR BEHEREREAFENHSHES

AERTESERE YMNEFERLER - FHZES
VHERREEFHFREEAEBTEERAANEMH



The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine
the remuneration of executive directors and senior
management based on the responsibilities,
qualifications and working performance of staff
(including directors). No director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to the directors, employees and other
eligible participants. Details of the share option scheme
are set out in note 25 to the financial statement.

ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The board is principally responsible for establishing
the development direction of the Group, formulating
targets and business development plans, approving
major agreements and matters, monitoring the
performance of senior management and is responsible
for corporate governance with a view to increasing
shareholders’ value. Led by the two general managers,
the management is responsible for implementing the
strategies and plans developed by the board.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the board for its decision and has
separately identified those functions reserved to the
board. The board will review those arrangements on a
regular basis to ensure that the arrangements meet
the needs of the Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager have different
roles. The chairman is responsible for the operation of
the board and the general managers are responsible
for managing the operations of the Group. Their
functions have been clearly divided to ensure a
balanced distribution of power and no authority will
concentrate on a single individual.

AEENHFHHREAATESRSREEABRET
(BREF)NRE BEELRIFRRENETEME - 8
BESHHMBEALTZ2TREELAGNME - KAF]
RAZBEREFSCSHABES BIREBEERA
T o BERRE R 81 2 FF 1B TR0 Y 75 e 3k MY 5E 25.
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TRMEEENACTR TRAAEFTSENR MA
KEBEEEAKRERY MEZHNBBED LR
Do NERENNMEESMAE  FTEREFE A
-+ .



Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, chairman of the board and
is principally responsible for leading the board and
ensures the board acts in the best interests for the
Company. The chairman shall ensure the board
operates effectively and performs its proper duties and
discusses all important and proper matters in a timely
manner. The chairman is responsible for convening
board meetings, consulting, determining and approving
the agenda of each board meeting, and ensuring that
directors are provided sufficient information on current
matters in a timely manner. The chairman is also
responsible for the structure, number of members and
composition of the board and makes recommendations
to the board on any intended changes. The chairman
is also responsible for ensuring that the Company
formulates good corporate governance practice and
procedure.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairman, the executive director and General Manager,
is principally responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for
the Group’s Financial Reporting, Internal Control,
Material Procurement and Control, Logistics, Customs,
Taxes and Legal matters and Compliance, coordinating
close cooperation among all departments, uniting
efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of staff
so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, the executive director and
General Manager, is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall
operations and implementing the board’s operating
strategy and policy and delegating tasks to all
departments for implementation so as to realise the
board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he is also
responsible for Research & Development, Production,
Quality Assurance and New Product Innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of
staff so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of
the Company’s operations and systems.

EXEIR/ELMNALE  T2RABHRAEESTS
BREFETENAARARKENTS - TRAERRESS
BRUMERENRBTRARE UREIABEEN &
ENFHETIW EFAEAHESEEH 0 &0
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the article 95 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the board is entitled to appoint any person
as director from time to time or at any time to fill a
casual vacancy or add a new board member. For
nomination, the nominee’s qualifications, capabilities
and potential to make contribution to the Company shall
be taken into consideration. The board has not
established a nomination committee at the moment.
However, the board will assess from time to time
whether there is a need to establish the nomination
committee to deal with the appointment, re-election
and retirement of directors. During 2007, Dr. Wong,
Kennedy Ying Ho resigned as director and deputy
executive chairman on 13th April 2007 and Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin was appointed as the deputy
executive chairman on 19th April 2007. Mr. Mok, Kin
Hing was appointed as alternate director to Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae (chairman of the board) on 14th
September 2007. The retired directors offered
themselves for re-election and were re-elected.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed
by a qualified staff and supervised by executive director
and general manager, Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin,
who is a U.S. certified public accountant. With the
assistance of the finance department, the Board will
ensure the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group complies with relevant regulations and
applicable accounting standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the audit fee
was approximately HK$727,000.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the
Company, in respect of the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the independent auditor’s report on
pages 34 to 35.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with
shareholders through the annual general meeting or
other general meetings and encourages them to
participate in general meetings. Registered
shareholders receive notices of general meetings by
post. The notice of general meeting contains the
agenda, the proposed resolutions and the voting form.
Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend the
annual general meeting and special general meetings
provided that their shares must be registered in the
register of members. Shareholders who are unable to
attend the general meeting can fill in the proxy form
attached with the notice of general meeting and return
the same to the share registrar and transfer office of
the Company so as to appoint their representatives or
the chairman of the meeting as their proxies.

TEXERBE
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BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED

A REE @ wl Bl A R

12th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
FETHAPICS-200 G LA™ A RKEL2H

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
RAYMOND INDUSTRIAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of Raymond Industrial Limited (the
“Company”) set out on pages 36 to 130, which
comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31st December 2007,
and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible
for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December 2007 and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BAKER TILLY HONG KONG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18th April 2008

Andrew David Ross
Practising certificate number P01183
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Continuing Continuing  Discontinued
operations operations operations
BE SR B&IE Total
2007 2006 2006 2006
—BERLE  —ZZTIR —EERX —EERF
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
g B B B B
Turnover —EX 0] ) 842,856,069 954,572,347 1,650,714 956,223,061
Cost of sales SHER AR (769,915,516) (837,255,886) (103,338) (837,359,224)
Gross profit EF 72,940,553 117,316,461 1,547,376 118,863,837
Other revenue H e A 6 17,272,437 18,088,475 - 18,088,475
Other net Hip (B#E)

(loss)/income W= FE 6 (1,534,778) 3,650,626 - 3,650,626
Selling expenses HEEH (10,720,276)  (19,826,332) - (19,826,332)
General and THEAR

administrative

expenses (79,174,846) (67,677,495) - (67,677,495)
(Loss)/profit g (B8R

from operations & (1,216,910) 51,551,735 1,547,376 53,099,111
Share of losses [ERE & N R B8

of associates (52,868,402) (1,136,798) - (1,136,798)
(Loss)/profit BREA (BR)

before taxation & F 7 (54,085,312) 50,414,937 1,547,376 51,962,313
Income tax FIB#at A/

credit/(expense) (i) 8 8,590,769 (5,566,777) (274,054)  (5,840,831)
(Loss)/profit after BREIZEE

taxation but HEBRIE

before gain on sale £ % ¥ 3§ Wz Al

of discontinued (&518) &7

operations (45,494,543) 44,848,160 1,273,322 46,121,482
Gain on sale of HEE & ILE

discontinued e EB R

operations 4 - - 2,112,584 2,112,584
(Loss)/profit for KARBRE

the year and B FE

attributable to (B1]) &7

equity shareholders

of the Company 11 (45,494,543) 44,848,160 3,385,906 48,234,066




COnSO|Idated Income Statement (continued) (For the year ended 31st December 2007)
MEAEBRZTER @ (BE-22+t5+-A=+t-ALEE)

Continuing
operations
&
REER
2007
g
HK$

B

Continuing
operations
&
BEED
2006
ZETRF
HK$

B

Discontinued
operations
B&IE
REE
2006
ZETLF
HK$

B

ARARER
BEARER
BARE

Dividends payable to
equity shareholders
of the Company
attributable to
the year:

AEEDIRE
FHEBE

Interim dividend
declared during
the year

Final dividend
proposed after
balance sheet date

Special dividend
proposed after
balance sheet date

BEARAR
BERE
REB

BEARAR
BERE
HRlHE

19,693,244

3,938,648

78,772,977

19,693,244

43,325,137

39,386,488

102,404,869

102,404,869

(Loss)/earnings BR(FB)
per share Y Fl
Basic, HK cents HEA B

(11.55)

Diluted, HK cents e El

(11.55)

The notes on pages 45 to 130 form part of these
financial statements.

ASEHZEE130E 2 M AER ST HEHRERZ —
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2007 2006
—EELHF —EER
Note HK$ HK$
B &t B JB
Non-current assets IRBEE
Fixed assets EEE 15
— Property, plant and equipment —WE  BEKRERE 179,173,132 188,888,094
— Interests in leasehold land held for —REBELEREREZ
own use under operating leases B A+ iR 14,321,284 14,018,513
Interests in associates %.%.* N A 16 - 52,868,402
Deferred tax assets FEFETEE B 18 4,222,780 100,360
197,717,196 255,875,369
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 19 103,510,986 102,320,197
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b g IR 18 20 121,299,425 144,021,312
Loan and interest receivable /NI 4
from an associate }ZH& B 16 - 9,033,210
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EMEEE 305,371,471 383,106,968
530,181,882 638,481,687
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H MR IRIE 21 115,370,456 155,843,630
Provision for financial loss B & 1B KRR 22 7,800,000 =
Current taxation ARHAFE 18 18 6,246,710 6,479,678
Dividends payable JE - A% B 12(c) 1,298,417 1,102,658
130,715,583 163,425,966
Net current assets RBEEFE 399,466,299 475,055,721
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERARBEE 597,183,495 730,931,090
Non-current liabilities *RBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIEEFE 18 3,312,680 8,810,850
NET ASSETS EEFRE 593,870,815 722,120,240




COHSO|Idated Balance Sheet (continued) (At 31st December 2007)
HREEBEERBER @ (cesstet-A=t-a&H)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 196,932,442 196,932,442

Reserves 396,938,373 525,187,798

TOTAL EQUITY 593,870,815 722,120,240

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZ-ZZZNFWNA+N\BEEZSERFETE -
directors on 18th April 2008.

7/&1&1

Wilson Wong Kin Lae Raymond Wong Man Hin
R EXH

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 45 to 130 form part of these 3 ASEZFE130E M REAK STV KRR Z —
financial statements. :
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2007 2006
—EELHF —EER
Note HK$ HK$
B &t B JB
Non-current assets IRBEE
Fixed assets EEE
— property, plant and equipment — M WERFZE 15 14,912,076 15,649,458
Investments in subsidiaries B ARRE 17 212,142,463 138,778,418
227,054,539 154,427,876
Current assets RBEE
Inventories TE 19 14,214,604 11,062,742
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& E b EWERIA 20 108,650,817 125,835,965
Loan and interest receivable SR /NICT = 4
from an associate JiE W F1) B 16 - 9,033,210
Dividends receivable from subsidiaries & UM B A 7] % B BR 18 17 - 65,106,030
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U BT /B A~ B) BR I8 17 42,098,440 81,020,451
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEEEE 296,261,660 372,144,202
461,225,521 664,202,600
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M E R IRE 21 81,153,289 113,517,906
Amounts due to subsidiaries JFE 15 BT B & &) BR 1B 17 56,519,017 38,616,250
Provision for financial loss B & 1B KRR 22 7,800,000 =
Current taxation ARHAFE 18 18 4,751,059 4,601,149
Dividends payable JE - A% B 12(c) 1,298,417 1,102,658
151,521,782 157,837,963
Net current assets RBEEFE 309,703,739 506,364,637
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERARBEE 536,758,278 660,792,513
Non-current liabilities *RBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIEEFE 18 2,431,680 2,673,903
NET ASSETS wWEE 534,326,598 658,118,610




Balance Sheet (continued) (At 31st December 2007)
EEBMER @ (cests+-a=+-a8%5)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 196,932,442 196,932,442

Reserves 337,394,156 461,186,168

TOTAL EQUITY 534,326,598 658,118,610

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZ-ZZZNFWNA+N\BEEZSERFETE -
directors on 18th April 2008.

7/&1&1

Wilson Wong Kin Lae Raymond Wong Man Hin
R EXH

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 45 to 130 form part of these 3 ASEZFE130E M REAK STV KRR Z —
financial statements. :
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2007 2006
—E2ZtHF —EER
Note HK$ HK$
B it B B
Total equity at 1st January R—B—BZz#@EER 722,120,240 881,759,334
Net income recognised directly EEZTFEEARZ
in equity: & FE
Exchange differences on translation of £ & F N E R
the financial statements of overseas B &8 N B B 7% ifﬁ%z
subsidiaries and associates ME W =58 26 19,681,316 16,268,963
Net (loss)/profit for the year XEE (KB wRFE (45,494,543) 48,234,066
Total recognised income and TEERERZ
expense for the year and KakREAR
attributable to equity share RAFKER
holders of the Company PG4 EE (25,813,227) 64,503,029
Dividends declared and approved AEREBIRE R
during the year #He 2 f% B 12(c), 26 (102,404,869) (259,950,823)
Movements in equity arising EEARIER M
from capital transactions: EARAZEZRBE

Equity settled share-based

BmENKD

transactions HEWIEB 26 (31,329) -
Shares issued under share ERERT KRG

option scheme 26 - 35,808,700

(31,329) 35,808,700

Total equity at 31st December T A=+-—H#&ER 26 593,870,815 722,120,240

E MR —

The notes on pages 45 to 130 form part of these HNF45BEFE 1308 2K AAMKILE

financial statements.



2007 2006
—E2ZtHF —EER
Note HK$ HK$
it iF B B
Operating activities KETER
(Loss)/profit before taxation BE R (B518) & F (54,085,312) 51,962,313
Adjustments for: HE
— Interest income — F 2 A 6 (17,152,437)  (18,088,475)
— Depreciation —E 7 24,974,270 22,317,720
— Net (gain)/loss on —HEWE  BER
disposal of property, BBz (Flz=)
plant and equipment B85 E 6 (736,702) 2,120,026
— Amortisation of interests — B E A ERE
in leasehold land held for BR 2z TR
own use under operating leases 7(b) 465,537 439,468
— Share of losses of associates — (Bt Z N R EE 52,868,402 1,136,798
— Impairment loss on loan and interest —BERAER R
receivable from an associate FEW R B 2R E 7(b) 9,438,646 =
— Provision for financial loss — B EEREE 7(b) 7,800,000 =
— Equity-settled share-based payment —EEENRARER
transactions SEN 7(a) (31,329) =
— Foreign exchange gain, net — & X = 5 E 5,407,998 9,498,164
Operating profit before changes EEESEEA
in working capital LR F 28,949,073 69,386,014
Increase in inventories #BmEE (1,190,789) (3,894,648)
Decrease in trade and other receivables &2 & 5 & H {th j& Ut BR 18 22,721,887 14,175,530
Decrease in trade and other payables B2 2 5 & E fth fE 4 BR 1B (32,673,174)  (56,176,303)
Increase in provision for financial loss 3 1 Bf 75 18 2k B & (7,800,000) =
Cash generated from operations REELECZRS 10,006,997 23,490,593
Tax paid HIEZ 0
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREFFHZH (110,902) (109,411)
Overseas tax paid N IR X (1,943,873) (1,124,172)
Overseas tax refund G HNTR IR IR [E] 777,625 =
Net cash generated from RETFTHEEZ
operating activities R&FE 8,729,847 22,257,010




2007 2006
—E2ZtHF —EER
Note HK$ HK$
B it B B
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the property, SENEZEIR
plant and equipment % 5 K 5% 16 (8,620,807) (12,458,619)
Proceeds from sale of property, i ’%%% % 5B &
plant and equipment F TS IR 6,654,591 112,910
Cash received from sale of HEREWMHEZ
discontinued operation b 4 - 528,110,000
Interest received A B U A 16,747,001 17,555,265
Net cash generated from RETBEEZ
investing activities BHEFEE 14,780,785 533,319,556
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from issue of shares BB AR M AT AR (D
under share option scheme Fr % *7\ 26 - 35,808,700
Dividends paid TR E 12(c) (102,209,110) (259,383,465)
Net cash used in Rl & 5E B Fr A
financing activities REFHE (102,209,110) (223,574,765)
(Decrease)/increase in cash mA) MRS R
and cash equivalents EEQ%EIE B (78,698,478) 332,001,801
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BAzZzHER
at 1st January HEeEEEH 383,106,968 50,646,011
Effect of foreign exchange NEEXBEH o HXE
rate changes 962,981 459,156
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-ZA=+—-HB=x2
at 31st December ReRREEEER 305,371,471 383,106,968

The notes on pages 45 to 130 part of these financial #H R E458 %

statements.
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1 COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor Grandtech Centre, 8
On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for year ended
31st December 2007 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) and
the Group’s interests in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

1 AFER
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 33.

(c) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

2 IEEFEEG®

(b) FMBBERRzZEHEEGE)
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ENERHE R A RYERER

B 5 335 AL HE JE B A B8 B A R 5 2 B P 41 4l 4 K
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 2(g)(ii)).

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associate’s net assets. The consolidated
income statement includes the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition and post-tax results of the associates.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(g)(ii)).

2 TFESITEER®
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(ii)

(iii)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(g)(ii))-

The cost of construction in progress, includes
the cost of machinery, materials, construction
expenditures and other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to a working condition for
its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment, less their
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful
lives at the following annual rates:

Buildings held for own use
which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair
value of the building could be
measured separately from
the fair value of the leasehold
land at the inception of
the lease (see note 2(f)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Moulds

4%-9% straight line

9%-18% straight line
9%-33.3% straight line

10% reducing balance and
9% straight line
25% reducing balance and
9% straight line

Motor vehicles

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress is not depreciated.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item or property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the estimated net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

(ii)

(iii)

TEEHEE®
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(f) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
exception land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon, is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

2 TFESITEER®
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(f) Leased assets (continued)
(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses
are recognised in accordance with accounting policy
set out in note 2(g)(ii).

(g) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

2 TFESITEER®
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivable directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised
in profit or loss.
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(9)
(ii)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified
as being held under an operating lease; and

investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 2(g)(i) and (ii)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note
2(g)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2(n)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

2 TFESITEER®

(hy =&

FENRKANERZEFEMERBBREEIR -

RATHERIEFARARAGTE - KABEMREHEE
A - BHBEAREFEERHB AT E RIRMARE
EREMRA

AIERFETE R BERBEEET MG SER A T
RN B HE 7T 35 6 P 7R B fE AT ACAS ©

EHERER  ZFFENEEENERSERKaE
ERANBENFAX - FEMORER ZRFESEENMA
BEFEBERNERRELMBNBEENPIENFAS - £
o] 48 [0 13 5 {F (o MORL HO 2058 T B 58 /% 1F H 75 8 [0 3¢ 1O HR
BMHERARAXNEEHENRD

() HB5REMbERZE

B REMBYFIENSRAFEERIAR - HR&RA
12 8 B OH RS N R RO BRORUE B R (R BT EE2(0) (1)) B
AR - HEfe U R IR I RIBRE A L ARER 1 B E AR Bl
BBz R ERIMRITBERZ BRI - RZF
BRT - BRI AINGR REBERBTIRR

() EBESkHEMENSFER

B NEMENRBNSRAFEEEIAR  HRE
MiEE2(n)(i) <M BEREE B REMENFRREE
BHAAFRE IR BBARE - MASKBR TG
HE o



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition.

()] Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the government
in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute, based
on a certain percentage of payrolls, to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as incurred except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories at the balance sheet date.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
()] Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Black
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
than the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the options is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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(ii)

(iii)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity, in which case
it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary difference
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

(ii)

(iii)
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(m)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and

liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(n)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the company under the guarantee, and
(ii) the amount of that claim on the Company is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in
trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(o) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at
the customers’ premises which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o) Revenue recognition (continued)
(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(p) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transactions dates.

The results of foreign currencies are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximately
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

2 IEEFEEG®

(o) WARER(H)
(i) EBEHEFHEEZHUA

REHEZRWHSWACHENAREZHBHEA - A

SHREERRANER  BNBEHMEELT LR

EREEEEMEE ZWEEARIRIN - HEEEEE

HERERAERSRUEE RN AR 2 EERD -
S HEMESCERBESERA/LA -

(i) FlEWA

MEWAREBEEMNBORFEMBZANEER -

(p) HEEBRE

FAZINERZFEXZBINE L BEBE - UINEEHE
CEBEENABEARGERZINER RIBE - B
BEARERRANERAR -

NEERAFHEZINEIFEREERBBERRS A ZIE

BONEBCRERAR A EEXRFEZEXRES
BT BERABRBRAREER ZINEEXRRERE
T MEAZEREZRERNEREB TIMEBIIAR -

RHEEINEEBE - B BEXBEARYTNRAERZR
AEAEENAELEZNEZHEREA



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q) Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby
research findings are applied to a plan or design for
the production of new or substantially improved
products and processes, is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the
cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Development expenditure is
recognised in the profit or loss as an expense as
incurred.

(r) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group
and which represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or its part of a
single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or
is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal. It also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, the
followings are presented on the face of the income

statement, which comprises:

- revenue, and the pre-tax profit or loss from
discontinued operations;

- income tax on profit or loss from discontinued
operations;

- gain or loss on disposal or measurement to fair
value less costs to sell; and

- income tax on that gain or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the Group in which
the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that
are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen geographical
segment information as the primary reporting format
and business segment as the secondary reporting
format for the purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to that segment. For example, segment assets
may include inventories, trade receivables and property,
plant and equipment. Segment revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilities are determined before intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated
as part of the consolidation process, except to the
extent that such intra-group balances and transactions
are between group entities within a single segment.
Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as
those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,
tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.
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3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs and Interpretations that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company.

There have been no significant changes to the
accounting policies applied in these financial
statements for the years presented as a result of these
developments. However, as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures and the
amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements: Capital disclosures, there have been
certain additional disclosures provided.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial
statements included expanded disclosures about the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments and
the nature and extent of risks arising from those
instruments, compared with the information previously
required to be disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation. These
disclosures are provided throughout these financial
statements, in particular in note 28.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional
disclosures requirements to provide information about
the level of capital and the Group’s and the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.
These new disclosures are set out in note 26(f).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not
have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the financial instruments.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 34).

3 EBNEXE2D

EBRHMASERGAEERARANAGH BHE
RABRBTAERANE T HEREETEBABEE
AR RIE -
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BIERMTAE : REIRFESTEUE1R M BERRL
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SRR o
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4 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 21st October 2005, the Company sold its investment
property to an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$528,110,000 in accordance with
a sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to the terms
and conditions of such agreement, the sale of such
investment property was consummated on 26th January
2006.

The property leasing business segment is reported as
a discontinued operation in these financial statements.

The net assets of the discontinued operations as at
the date of discontinuance were as follows:

4 CRIFEEEK

EZZEELF+A-+—B AR TBRBESEREUE
B5%528,110,000 cHEE KR EGYHEEBYE=7 -
BERZGER  HEREVEZZSFIER _TTENF—
AZ+/HZEK -

MEHREXGOBEERSTVHBREATIFCRIELER
BE2W -

ERIELEXBEEFENRLLEERANT ¢

At 26th January 2006
RZZEZERF—H=Z+AXH

HK$
JB
Investment property (note) wEYE (K:E) 485,000,000
Consideration received EBRA

— satisfied in cash — R & 528,110,000
— other payables — H fb fE 5 BR (40,997,416)
487,112,584

Consideration received, satisfied EBIWA  wmEZERENK
in cash and net cash inflow HERAFE 528,110,000

The cash flows of the discontinued operations for the
previous year were as follows:

EFEZCRIEREXERSRANT ¢

1st January 2006 to

26th January 2006
—EERF-A—BZE
ZETRF-AZ+XH

HK$

JB B

Cash used in operating activities KETFHIRES T H (47,836,482)
Cash generated from investing RERBEEZ

activities He 528,110,000

Note: The investment property was revalued at 31st [ - REVERBYHEMAESTEETGHERABRA AR

December 2005 on the basis of its open market value
by independent, professionally qualified valuers, Vigers
Appraisal and Consulting Limited. The investment
property is located in Hong Kong and held on leases
of between 10 and 50 years.

TERRAFT AT RARARTSEREELRYE
il REMEWHETERBAEAERTFER T
£ o



5 TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and sale of electrical home appliances and property
leasing.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
to customers and rental income. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover

5 EXER

AEEIEXGRRELHEERAERLMERE -

EXBEREERRSIHABRESNA - EAFEE
XETZBRETBZHEMN KD ¢

during the year is as follows:

2007 2006
—EZTtHF —ETRF
HK$ HK$
B B
Sales of electrical home appliances KAEREE 842,856,069 954,572,347
Gross rentals from investment properties @R EWEHE S WA - 1,650,714
842,856,069 956,223,061
6 OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/ 6 HttWAR (&HE) W=E
INCOME
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$ HK$
B B
Other revenue H fth it A
Bank interest income RAT S WA 16,747,001 17,555,265
Interest income receivable from Bt N Al EWRE KA S
loan to an associate (note 30(c)(i)) (K1 #30(c)(i) 405,436 533,210
_____________________________________________ 17,152,437 16,088,475
Rentals receivable from operating HEEBEBHOR 2
leases, other than those relating to HEWA  TRER
investment property (note 30(c)(ii)) BRI E W% (K 730(c)(ii) 120,000 -
17,272,437 18,088,475
Other net (loss)/income Hh (518 W= FE
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE @ WE K&
plant and equipment R /()EHTE FE 736,702 (2,120,026)
Net exchange (loss)/gain ER (B518) W= FE (2,405,969) 754,430
Tax refund from reinvestment BRENRWB AR Z
in a subsidiary R - 3,966,421
Sundry income H b g 75 134,489 1,049,801
(1,534,778) 3,650,626




7  (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 BREE AT (B518) A
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived after charging/ K F AT (E518) & F &k (Gt A) TH & B =
(crediting): B
2007 2006
—EZTtHF —TER
HK$ HK$
B BB
(a) Staff costs (a) EBIMAEX
Salaries, wages and other benefits FHe ITELRHMET 111,907,338 95,167,127
Discretionary bonuses )15 B PR AE 41 2,314,440 5,381,800
Contributions to defined contribution BRIRESEEIH R
retirement plans 8,972,305 8,698,922
Equity-settled share-based T o B < AR AN Bt
payment transactions (note 26(a)) X IEE (KiF26(a) (31,329) -
123,162,754 109,247,849
(b) Other items (b) HfEE
Cost of inventories sold* 5 & 7 Bk A 769,915,516 837,255,886
Amortisation 5
— land lease premium — AL 465,537 439,468
Depreciation e
— property, plant and equipment — M WERFZE 24,974,270 22,317,720
Impairment losses VERIEN SEi
— trade and other receivables —E 5 MEMEW (F7F20)
(note 20) - 2,527,268
— loan and interest receivable —BERAER K
from an associate (note 16) EWFI B (Hfat16) 9,438,646 =
Provision for financial loss (note 22) B S8 K s (K aE22) 7,800,000 =
Auditors’ remuneration % HUEM BN & 885,447 850,780
Product development costs EmERKA 235,352 952,210

Cost of inventories includes HK$78,335,000 (2006: *#
HK$72,852,000) relating to staff cost and depreciation,
which amount is also included in the respective total

amounts disclosed separately above or in note 7(a)

for each type of expense.

HEFERABIEB78,335,000C (CTTNF : B
#725,852,00000) BB TN ARITE - 22BN EIE
R E7@QEESBERAESE -



Notes to the Financial Statements
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 REBBERZEH
INCOME STATEMENT

Taxation in the consolidated income statement  (a) HEBRRENZMIE
represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax A 1E-FRAEH
(note 18(a)) (fii£18(a))

Provision for the year INF 107,055 8,310,409
Under-provision in respect of TEEREBRD
prior years 149,910 109,917

256,965 8,420,326

Current tax — PRC Enterprise AFEEHRE-PEEHE
Income Tax (note 18(a)) 8% (Afat18(a))

Provision for the year NERE 1,556,394 2,216,580
Tax refund B (777,625) -
Under/(over)-provision in respect of TFERERL

prior years (I £R) 8,448 (678,855)

787,217 1,537,725
Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of BRERBELREZEN
temporary differences EEREMD (9,634,951) (4,117,220)

Income tax (credit)/expense MEHE GIA) X H (8,590,769) 5,840,831

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2007 is & &S IR A F E M BRI B K E17.5%
calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of the estimated (=T ZT/X4F : 17.5%) BB EHE -
assessable profits for the year.
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(a)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are generally
subject to the appropriate current rates of taxation
ruling is the relevant countries except for:

8

(a)

mERBERZAEHR @

e

meBaRENNZHRE - (&)

2N 5= 18 2 18 ) B B 1 AR P B 1b 1 B 7% R 1) 2 IR 1T A R

.
=1 H
al =+ ~

AT BRI

2007 2006
—EZTtHF —EER
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical MR (FBED)
Appliances Development ERERARAA
Company Limited (note (i) (K17 3i) 10.0% 15.0%
Guangzhou Conquest Electric EMNRIRAER
Company Limited (note (ii)) AR AT (B (i) 7.5% 0.0%

Notes:

(i)

Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances
Development Company Limited has established in
Panyu Nansha Economic Technology Development
Zone in the PRC, and the applicable Enterprise Income
Tax rate was 15% in 2006. During the year ended
31st December 2007, this subsidiary was recognised
by the local tax authorities as an export-oriented
enterprise and is accordingly eligible for the
preferential tax treatment of 10% reduced Enterprise
Income Tax rate.

Guangzhou Conquest Electric Company Limited was
established in Panyu Nansha Economic Technology
Development Zone in the PRC, and the applicable
Enterprise Income Tax rate is 15%. This subsidiary is
recognised by the local tax authorities as a production-
oriented foreign investment enterprise and is entitled
to an Enterprise Income Tax exemption for the first
two profitable years and a 50% reduction of Enterprise
Income Tax for subsequent three years. 2007 is the
first profitable year of this subsidiary and the applicable
Enterprise Income Tax rate for 2007 is therefore 7.5%.

i -
()

MR (BB ERERARAFEATRHZBEEDL
ERMARERY  R_EENF2ERACEMRSHES
KE15% REBZE—_TE+F+_A=+—HILEFE -
B AR EM A HERERAL LY  AEmMEEH
BEEMBHBMEIREER - REBHEEE10% -

BENRIFKAEREGR BN EE B/ BRI
BRRY - HERAZEEMBRNER15% ° WHER
RIEMSBERERREERINERE  EHEIMEE
NEEZELEMGHARES  YNER=ZFEFEE
BEEMGHBEREER - _ZZLERINBERF
ZERENFEE  —ZZLFEAZEERGHHIER
7.5% °



8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

On 16th March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the
Tenth National People’s Congress passed the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“New Tax Law”) which has become effective on 1st
January 2008. As a result of the New Tax Law, the
statutory income tax rate adopted by the PRC entities,
other than the aforesaid subsidiaries, in (i) to (ii), will
change to 25% with effective from 1st January 2008.

As of 1st January 2008, those subsidiaries engaging
in manufacturing activities and previously enjoyed
preferential policy in the form of reduced tax rate shall
have five years from the time when the New Tax Law
takes effect to transit progressively to the new statutory
tax rate. During this period, the subsidiaries that
enjoyed the 15% Enterprise Income Tax rate shall be
subject to the 18% tax rate for the year 2008, 20% for
the year 2009, 22% for the year 2010, 24% for the
year 2011, and 25% for the year 2012.

As of 1st January 2008, those subsidiaries which
previously enjoyed fixed-term preferential Enterprise
Income Tax treatment in the form of tax reduction and
exemption shall continue to enjoy preferential treatment
for their initial term as prescribed under the previous
income tax laws until the initial term expires.

The change in the carrying amount of the deferred tax
assets and liabilities, as a result of the change in tax
rate, is recognised in the consolidated income
statement of the Group for the year ended 31st
December 2007.

8 HBEBRBRZFEH W)
(@) RESBFKR2FZHE: (@)
R-ZZLF=A+7A  E+EFEARKRRAES

TIREZRBPEARANBEECEMRGHE ([HH

D) RZEZENF-A—BAER - ERFHOE - 7 E
$%( N EFE 1 3EE (i) B (ii) T8 P 2t B B X B)) 3R 2 A E
IRHREEH _—_TSTENF A - HEENR[25% °

R-ZZZENF—H—H &% ?ﬁé%*”L%i&&E’\%E?M
HRREZRAZERBERRZHBRR §EBHM
PiixﬁliquﬂEHfF'ﬁﬁ*/FiEFi%ﬁﬁmTR o A It A
B ZHEI%EEABHBERZMBEBARNAR_FEN
FZRERZ18% BA_?QJL¢ZTR$F520% R=-Z
—BEIZHERR2% RN T ——FZMERR24% "R
—E_FIZHERR25% °

R-ZFTZNE—A—H" Ei%?ﬁ‘iﬁﬂﬁ%lﬁ%uﬁ& BB
AZFEECFHEEMSHERLMBERR @ BEER
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬂ‘aiz%ﬂ*iﬁﬂW%ﬁ%ﬂi‘“ BHE®E
BEHE® -

ARXEHEPELENREENAB L RAEHRZE
EJJ ERBE_ZFFLFT_A=T—"HLEFEEAR
DTE@%WEEWUO



INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/ (b)

expense and accounting (loss)/profit at the il

applicable tax rates:

REBBERZAEH @

2007
—22tE
HK$

B

EHERBERNEH GIA) /X kg2 (BR)

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Briian (BE) & 7

(54,085,312)

51,962,313

Notional tax on (loss)/profit
before taxation, calculated
at the rates applicable to profits
in the countries concerned

Tax effect of non-taxable
income

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Tax effect of previous years’ tax
losses recognised in current year

Tax concession

Over-provision in prior years

Effect of change in tax rates

Effect of tax relief granted to
PRC subsidiaries

Others

BEBLREZ
HERAREAE

Bruian (B8
A B E IR

BB ME FERBLAZ
BB E
ABBME TR AR HZ
BB E
AERRARBERZ
BB E
AERRBEERTERZ
BB E

B R

EFERER %
MEB 2 RBTE

o B B 8 2 A
BMBRREEE

H At

(10,163,824)
(13,362,043)
17,844,741

797,726

(25,000)
(619,267)
(1,462,384)

395,328
(1,996,046)

7,874,987
(4,756,457)
6,779,535

1,138
(18,370)
(568,93;)

(3,476,064)

Actual tax (credit)/expenses

EHBEGIA) X

(8,590,769)

5,840,831
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

EEME

EEMERBEEBARKIFEIIHRENT :

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

follows:

Name of Director
Espz

Directors’
fees

e

HK$
BETT

Salaries,

allowances
and benefits  Discretionary

in kind bonus  contributions
§é [k e Sub-total
BERER  BRZEA it At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BETT BETT EETT EETT

Retirement
scheme

Share-based
payments
(note)

R A
ER%H
(Hrit)

HK$
EETT

2007

Total
ZERLE
ChH

HK$
EEFR

Chairman
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae

Executive directors

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho
(resigned on 13th April 2007)

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Non-executive directors
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang
Mr. Qiang, Wenyu

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Alternate directors
Mr. Xiong, Zheng Feng

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing (appointed on

14th September 2007)

IF
RN

HiTEE

REGEL

REFBL(CTELE
MA+=REf)

ANBLE

FHITEE
RETHBT
RHERE
BB

BUFHITEE

REMERE
BLERE
il L

KEZ

REERE

BRERLE(CFFLE
NATHAZHE)

120,000

140,000

140,000

120,000
160,000
120,000

160,000
160,000
160,000

11,950 80,000 211,950

2,780,983 280,000 144,000 3,344,983

2,051,950 390,000 2,680,950

120,000
160,000
120,000

160,000
160,000
160,000

246,000 21,000 267,000

211,950

3,344,983

(23,564)
2,680,950

120,000
160,000
120,000

160,000
160,000
160,000

267,000

1,280,000

5,090,883 750,000 264,000 7,384,883

(23,564)

7,361,319
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(continued)

9 EEMEw

Salaries, Share-based
allowances Retirement payments
and benefits  Discretionary scheme (note) 2006
Directors’ in kind bonus  contributions IR A Total
Name of Director fees i B Bhe Sub-total ERXE —2EXRE
ESpg we  EEREN  gHZRA #5 Mt (Hit) &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BETT BEFT BETT BETT BETT BEFT BT
Chairman E
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BRAEE 80,000 - 61,475 - 141,475 - 141,475
Executive directors HTEZE
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRELA 80,000 3,078,688 - 144,000 3,302,688 - 3,302,688
Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho BAREL 80,000 1,500,000 - - 1,580,000 - 1,580,000
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BNEEA 80,000 2,401,475 - 72,000 2,553,475 - 2553475
Non-executive directors FHES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang FEAD B 80,000 374,250 - - 454250 - 454250
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHATE 100,000 180,000 - - 280,000 - 280,000
Mr. Qiang, Wenyu BXHTE 80,000 180,000 - - 260,000 - 260,000
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PRERE 100,000 41,250 - - 141,250 - 141,250
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERE 100,000 - - - 100,000 - 100,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming REHTE 100,000 - - - 100,000 - 100,000
Alternate director rEZ
Mr. Xiong, Zheng Feng BRIBTE - 99,000 - - 99,000 - 99,000
880,000 7,854,663 61,475 216,000 9,012,138 - 9,012,138
Note: Kt

These represent the estimated value of share options granted
to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions as set out in note 2(l)(ii) and, in accordance
with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts
accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments
are forfeited.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under
the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the directors’ report
and note 25.

BEE2INERBEARA ZBEEA IR TRR ZBRENG
B -BEREBERREAKENGAREDRIARNDBERZH
HEERME2() () RRLEREK - BREFAREFOBETRE
mIAKK -

BAFRE  BEIZROIKBRERTERE  EEEHEETD
BT B K MY AT 258 8 -
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10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 10 BEEEME
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, ZA&EBRANUZSHFMALFBEE=(M (ZTZNE + =
three (2006: two) are directors whose emoluments are i) &% H#EZHEEHAWF B T (ZFT
disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments N : =) ZEHFA T ZME OO T

in respect of the other two (2006: three) individuals

are as follows:

2007
—EELF
HK$

B

Salaries and other emoluments e kHAEF 1,451,317 2,335,325
Discretionary bonuses )15 2 I FE 4L 295,000 470,000
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE K 60,000 180,000

1,806,317 2,985,325

The emoluments of the two (2006: three) individuals fERI&EEFHMMA LM (ZTZNF : =) BieER 5
with the highest emoluments are within the following 4720 :
bands:

2007
—EELHF
Number of
individuals

A

2006
—TTRF
Number of
individuals

AE

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

BT T £8%1,000,0007T
g5 %1,000,0017T &

75 %1,500,0007TC

2

2
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11 (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11 BREREWN(SE) EF
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity ARARBREEML 244 (FiB) EH e EEEBE
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of 21,355,81470 (ZZZ /N4 : i FE#55,295,61270) °

HK$21,355,814 (2006: profit of HK$55,295,612) which HEER AR B EHET AR -
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

12 DIVIDENDS 12 BE

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (a) ZXAEEEMNKREHEAQITARREMN

of the Company attributable to the year

2007 2006
—EZTtHF —ETERF
HK$ HK$
Interim dividend declared and paid BIREZHHRE
of 5 HK cents per ordinary share & iR I RS B 51
(2006: 5 HK cents per ordinary share) (ZZZX4F : B E5(L) 19,693,244 19,693,244
Final dividend proposed REEBEBEREE é
after the balance sheet date BEIRERAARKR
of 1 cent per ordinary share BRE @Hxﬁ%%ﬂm
(2006: 11 HK cents per ordinary share) (ZZZ/X4F : BFE11L) 3,938,648 43,325,137
Special dividend proposed REEBBEREFEAR fé
after the balance sheet date IR E R AR
of 20 cents per share FEE @RS d%520%
(2006: 10 HK cents (ZEZTRF : B0
per ordinary share) 78,772,977 39,386,488
102,404,869 102,404,869

The final and special dividends proposed after the REES
balance sheet date have not been recognised as a ZEEA&EXKA4
liability at the balance sheet date.

sHBAAER/AR-

BERAEZHREZRERPBE REHBRER



12 DIVIDENDS (continued)

12 RE @

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b)  FA{EFE fE AL B B A D B IR FE(G M e A F

Company attributable to the previous financial

BEE#ERf -

year, approved and paid during the year.

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERE
HK$ HK$
Final dividend in respect of the TEEARBER
previous financial year, TEARNF E B8 E R
approved and paid during the year, SN EFRABE 111U
of 11 HK cents per share (ZZEZARF -
(2006: 11 HK cents per share) HREEEEA11(L) 43,325,137 42,308,407
Special dividend in respect of the FEERNBHER
previous financial year, EARF E BB E R
approved and paid during the year, S ERAB 101U
of 10 HK cents per share (ZZEZRF -
(2006: 50 HK cents per share) &% 75 # 50110) 39,386,488 192,310,942
82,711,625 234,619,349
(c¢) Dividends payable in the balance sheet (c) REEEEBERZEMRE
The Group and the Company
AEBEREAT
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$ HK$
B B
At 1st January n—H—H 1,102,658 535,300
Dividends paid THRBEE (102,209,110) (259,383,465)

Dividend declared and

REEBEIRER

approved during the year IR B

— in respect of the —FFEE
previous financial year 82,711,625 240,257,579

— in respect of the —KRFEE
current financial year 19,693,244 19,693,244
102,404,869 259,950,823
At 31st December Rn+=-—A=+—H 1,298,417 1,102,658




13 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

13 BR(EE) EF

(@) The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per (a) #ERER (BB MMzt ERUAAEBERRE
share is based on the loss attributable to HREXBEIEBEA4S5, 494 54371( FTNE
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of S5k )5 M 48,234,066 7T ) 2 A8 128 48 1R 2 B 64T AN
HK$45,494,543 (2006: profit of HK$48,234,066) F 15 Bk 2 393,864, 884Hx (ZZEE RN
and the weighted average of 393,864,884 389,067,043%) 5t &
ordinary shares (2006: 389,067,043) in issue
during the year.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares MEFHRBNEER

2007 2006
ZEELHF —ZEETRX
Issued ordinary share R—A—HBHEB®TZ
at 1st January T3 AR 393,864,884 378,080,884
Effect of share options TEEREZE
exercised - 10,986,159
Weighted average number of = A = r—lEZ
ordinary share at 31st December D0 #E - 25 fg EAY B AR 393,864,884 389,067,043

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (by ER#EE(FBE) ERN

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is &M & (E18) % 2t E R LA$¢IHX$F1E?§%

based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity 3 75 /& 18 78 ¥ 45,494, 54375 (7 TRE  HmAEK

shareholders of the Company of HK$45,494,543 (2006:
profit of HK$48,234,066) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 393,864,884 shares
(2006: 389,067,043 shares).

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share calculations have
not included the outstanding share options as at 31st
December 2007 and 2006 since the effect is anti-
dilutive.

14 SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the
Group’s business and geographical segments.
Geographical segment information is chosen as the
primary reporting format because this is more relevant
to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

(a) Geographical segments

The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide
basis, but participates in four principal economic
environments. The PRC, Japan, Europe and North
America are the major market for all of the Group’s
electrical appliances business.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the
geographical location of customers. Segment assets
and capital expenditure are based on the geographical
location of the assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B MY &F

14 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 14 DEHRE (B
(a) Geographical segments (continued) (a) WEZBWER (&)

Inter-segment Total continuing  Discontinued
United States The PRC Japan Europe Others elimination Unallocated operations operations Total
28 1| kS BH it RBABES X438 BEEEERE  DRLEERR i
2000 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
SRRLE CTTAF CRRLF JTTF CRRLE CTTFCRRLE CTTF CRRLE CTTAF CRRLE CTTAF CRRLE CTT R CRME ST CEME CTTF CRME I TR
HK$000  HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00 HKSO000 HKS'000 HKSO00 HKSO00 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000
RETT BT RRTR ENTn BRTR ERTT BRT A¥Tn BRTR BATT BRTR ERTT BRTR BETT BRTi BETT ERTR BYTn ARTR AMTn

Revenues
External sales 283,699 353,081 21459 13507 337,128 327,301 141,959 177,100 58611 82,683 - - 842,85 954572 842,85 956,223
Inter-segment sales - - 518,543 535972 - 742,736 771,678 (1,261,279) (1,307,650) - - - -

Other revenue - - - - - - - - - 120 - 120 -

283,699 353,081 540,002 549479 337,128 327301 141,959 177,100 801,347 854361 (1,261,219) (1307650) 120 842,076 954572 842,976 956,223

Seqment resul 5854 (150) 1185 (1) 5 (1194 840 54 19253 (69 807 - 14 (1,130 38053 (1,130 39,600

Interest income HERA 17,152 18,088 17,152 16,088
Unallocated cost FARIA (17.2%9)  (4589) (17.2%9)  (4569)

(Loss)/profit from operations 4 % (&5%8) /7 (1,217) 51562 (1,217) 53,009

Share of losses of associates  [FBEREE (52,868)  (1,137) (52,868)  (1,137)

(Loss)/profit before taxation B4l (65) /il (54,085) 50,415 (54,085) 51,962

Income tax creditiexpense)  FEHiA/ (k) 8591 (5,567) 8591 (5841)

(Loss)/profit after RRGAELERRLAE
taxation before gain on hhs

sale of discontinued operations i (&%) /7] (45,404) 44848 (45,404) 46,121

(Gain on sale of HERKER
discontinued operations hhs ) 2113

(Loss)/profitfor the year KEE (58) /&7 (45,404) 44,848 (45,494) 48,234
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Notes to the Financial Statements

14 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 14 DEHRE (B
(a) Geographical segments (continued) (a) WEZBWER (&)

Inter-segment Total continuing Discontinued
United States The PRC Japan Europe Others elimination Unallocated operations operations Total
%8 1| 8% B it rEABES *58 BREELRE  DALEERE i
2000 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
SRRLE STTAF CRBLE JTNF CRRLE CTRAGCRRLE CRRAF CORLE BTN CRRLE CRTAF CRRLE CRF CRRLE JRRAE COULE R CORLE SRE
HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS000 HKSO000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000
AETR BETT ARTn ANTn ABTR AETn ARTn B¥Tn ANTR BETn ARTn ERTn AMTR BETn BRTn ENTn ARTR BETn AT EvTn

Depreciaton and FERHEREH

amortisation for the year 2420 21489 k 240 2757
Impairment of loan and BELREAR

inerest receivatle ERHSZAE

from an associate 9,439 9,439
Provision fr financia loss BREXER 7800 7800

Segment assets APEE 212656 290207 723676 723676 841,389
Intrests in associates BER Tl - - - - 5088
Unallocated assets RALEE 4223 4223 100

4%E 727899 894367 727899 894357

Segment iabiies (9501)  (9501) (24,716)  (30,331) - (88953) (113517) (123,170) (153,349 (123,170) (163,349)
Unallocated liabites (10,858) (18,888) (10,858) (18,888)

Tota aiies 825 (134028) (172237) (134028) (172237)

Caplta expendiure RERERERE
incurred during
the year - 474 112
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B MY &F

14 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 14 DEHRE (B
(b) Business segments (b)y EKoBER

The Group comprises the following main business ZA&EBEEIEN N EBEK DI
segments:

Electrical home appliances: the manufacturing and sale KA EE : HERHERAEE -
of electrical home appliances.

Property leasing: the leasing of office premises to WHMHE : HMESFTEELEZHSRA (FERIELEE
generate rental income (which is presented as #MHR2%]) o
discontinued operations).

Electronic Total continuing Discontinued Total
home appliances Others operations operations operations
ZRER 2t BRRLERY HRALEEEH BEERK
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZERtE CETSE CBEBLE CBERF CBRLE CTTNE CBELE -TISE ZRBLE ZRENE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
B¥Tn  EETn  A¥Tn AT RBTn AETn BETn E¥Tn BETn BETr

Revenue from HHREZHA
external customers 842,856 954,572 842,976 954,572 1,651 842,976 956,223

Segment assets PHEE 723,676 841,389 723,676 841,389 - T23676 841,389
Capital expenditures ~ AFEEA T

incurred during
the year 12,459 12,459 12,459
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIXED ASSETS
The Group

Interests in

leasehold

land held

for own

use under

Buildings Furniture, operating
held for fixtures and leases Total
Construction ownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor BERE fixed assets
inprogress  %HEMZ  machinery & Moulds vehicles  Subtotal  BFERz HEREE
ERIR BEY HEREE RERZE 1% byt Nt 1B &t
HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$

Cost: BA:

AtfstJanvary 2006 H-SERE-A-B 7,001,780 150995239 147,112,652 42,555,396 3575015 10426143 361,666,225 18,234,111 379,900,336
Exchange adjustments } 23 151357 4057439 3079015 1605023 11414 257931 Q162,179 429218 9591397
Additions #1 8,058,258 2,382,005 1,098,054 - 90292 12458619 12458619
Transfers 1 (7,768,952) 4,126,880 3470481 - 171,591 - -
Disposals e (49.900) (13,246,364) (11,202,000) (3,148,324) (1,804,016) (29,450,604) - (29,450,604)

At 31st December ~ RZTEAE
2006 +Zf=1-H 7,442,443 155,002,778 143,454,198 37,526,954 438,105 9,971,941 353,836,419 18,663,329 372,499,748

At 1st January 2007 R=ZBtE-F-H 7422443 155,002,778 143,454,198 37,526,954 438,105 9,971,941 353,856,419 18,663,329 372,499,748
Exchange adjustments % £:32 392,698 9,917,110 6,963,643 4,039,537 27911 546,233 21,887,132 1,049,499 22,936,631
Additions 2 3,884,479 3,811,744 540,818 - 383,766 8,620,807 - 8,620,807
Transfers g3 (7,343,332) 5,308,680 869,817 1,164,835 - - - - -
Disposals HE - - (9,269,285) (18,395,518) - (1,170,247) (28,835,050) - (28,835,050)

At 31st December ~ WZEELE
2007 tZR=1-H 4,376,288 170,228,568 145,830,117 24,876,626 466,016 9,731,693 355,509,308 19,712,828 375,222,136
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15 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(a) The Group (continued)

15 EBEEEE &)
(a) F&KH(H)

Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
use under
Buildings Furniture, operating
held for fixtures and leases Total
Construction own use Plantand  equipment Motor TEHE fixed assets
inprogress  #HEMAZ  machinery & Moulds vehicles  Sub-total  BfEEMZz  BEREE
RRIE BEYM HEREE RERER I RE it 1ihiER At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BY EE bt AE EE bt BY EE BY
Accumulated FHRERAE
amortisation
and depreciation:
At 1st January 2006 RZFF E-A—H - 60,830,745 69,139,516 26,422,108 1,895,336 8,268,808 166,556,513 4,101,049 170,657,562
Exchange adjustments % % - 1,516,747 1,220,680 877,436 - 213,731 3,828,594 104,299 3,932,893
Charge for the year ~ AEEHE - 5583876 11,915,635 4,079,642 - 738567 22,317,720 439,468 22,757,188
Written back HEHME
on disposals - (44,910) (13,646,503) (10,893,677) (1,512,276) (1,657,136) (27,754,502) - (27,754,502)
At 31st December ~ RWZZE/E
2006 +-B=1-H - 67,886,458 68,629,328 20,485,509 383,060 7,563,970 164,948,325 4,644,816 169,593,141
At 1st January 2007 RZZ5tE-A-H - 67,886,458 68,629,328 20,485,509 383,060 7,563,970 164,948,325 4,644,816 169,593,141
Exchange adjustments % % - 4,080,142 2,463,248 2,344,137 - 443215 9,330,742 281,191 9,611,933
Charge for the year AEEHE - 6966579 12,638,074 4,695,170 - 674447 24974270 465537 25,439,807
Written back HERME
on disposals - - (5,734,857) (16,542,751) - (639,553) (22,917,161) - (22,917,161)
At 31st December ~ W=ZFEtE
2007 t-B=1+-A - 78,933,179 77,995,793 10,982,065 383,060 8,042,079 176,336,176 5,391,544 181,727,720
Net book value: REFE:
At 31st December ~ R-ZFEtE
2007 t-B=1-A 4,376,288 91,295,389 67,834,324 13,894,561 82,956 1,689,614 179,173,132 14,321,284 193,494,416
At 31st December R -FEAREF
2006 +t-A=1+-AH 7442443 87,116,320 74824870 17,041,445 55,045 2,407,971 188,888,094 14,018,513 202,906,607




15 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

15 BEEE #)

(b) The Company (b) AAF
Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and equipment Motor
machinery PE NN Moulds vehicles Totals
BERKE RERZRE I AE &%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B B
Cost: B
At 1st January 2006 RZEEE—A—H 23,128,805 8,167,879 3,148,324 1,707,120 36,152,128
Additions #2n 491,400 - - 350,000 841,400
Disposals = - (8,105279)  (3,148,324) - (11,253,603)
At 31st December RZZTRE
2006 +-A=+—H 23,620,205 62,600 - 2,057,120 25,739,925
At 1st January 2007 R=-ZEZE+tF-H—-H 23,620,205 62,600 - 2,057,120 25,739,925
Additions #m 3,506,956 - - 380,000 3,886,956
Disposals HE - - - (772,800) (772,800)
At 31st December R-ZE+F
2007 +=B=+-1H” 27,127,161 62,600 - 1,664,320 28,854,081
Accumulated depreciation: R ITE :
At 1st January 2006 R-ZZEEFE—A—H 5,114,548 8,129,579 1,512,276 995,618 15,752,021
Charge for the year AEEHE 3,681,485 9,140 - 265,376 3,956,001
Written back on disposals & & e - (8,105,279)  (1,512,276) - (9,617,555)
At 31st December RZZTRF
2006 +-A=+—H 8,796,033 33,440 - 1,260,994 10,090,467
At 1st January 2007 R-EZE+H5-H—-H 8,796,033 33,440 - 1,260,994 10,090,467
Charge for the year rEERE 3,955,834 6,260 - 171,294 4,133,388
Written back on disposals H&#E - - - (281,850) (281,850)
At 31st December R-BELF
2007 +=A=+-H 12,751,867 39,700 - 1,150,438 13,942,005
Net book value: REFE :
At 31st December R-BELF
2007 +=ZB=+-H 14,375,294 22,900 - 513,882 14,912,076
At 31st December RZZTRE
2006 +ZA=+—H 14,824,172 29,160 - 796,126 15,649,458




15 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(¢) The analysis of net book value of properties is

15 BEEE #)

(c) WMEEEAFMT :

as follows:
The Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELHF “EERF
HK$ HK$
B JE K
Medium-term leases EHHEE
—in Hong Kong — BB 16,081,148 16,971,740
— outside Hong Kong — BB LN 89,535,525 84,163,093
105,616,673 101,134,833
Representing: AR
Buildings held for own use BEBEREEY 91,295,389 87,116,320
Interest in leasehold land KEHREREEAZ
held for own use 4 A A
under operating leases 14,321,284 14,018,513
105,616,673 101,134,833

(d) Fixed assets leased out under operating
leases

The Group leases out a part of an office premise under
a operating lease. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one year, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as
follows:

(d REEBHVZEETEEHEE

AEERLERN S FEEE - BOSH—F - 3|
REEEERZGHENRAL - RABVNEREXARAE

S
G

AEEZ BBEAEOMNETATBUEEER D EUKREA
LU

2007 2006
—EZTtHF —ZTER
HK$ HK$
Within 1 year —F R 60,000 -




Notes to the Financial Statements

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16 HBiEQATAER

The Group The Company
xE AR
2007 2006 2007 2006
—E2LHF —ETRF —E2LHF ZTERF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Unlisted shares, IE LMD
at cost AN A BR

Share of net assets B EEFE 52,868,402

52,868,402

Loan and interest FE UL N 2
receivable from an BR KA E
associate 9,438,646 9,033,210 9,438,646 9,033,210

Less: impairment losses o BERE (9,438,646) - (9,438,646)

9,033,210 9,033,210

The loan to an associate is interest bearing at HIBOR B & A8 2 EFIZF B EHIBORM1% @ HERZE-ZT
plus 1% per annum and repayable on 24th November Z+HF+— A F+HBAMERN - BERAEFZ ()& 0 =
2007. The loan is secured by all equity interests in (i) 27 R(i)Z#E R az—MBAR « ZBERR 2D
this associate; and (ii) a subsidiary of this associate, E£UxR gz 2 2 PAREREZS -

of a minority shareholder of this associate.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. RIRE%BR A"  Annual Report 2007 F &




Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16 Hf& AR #E#R (8)

RRARHLHOE IBYELEEIRERE
HEEMT

The following are the particulars of the associates, B &
which are unlisted corporate entities, which principally = -
affected the results or assets of the Group:

Proportion of
ownership interest

fagRsl %

Particulars Group’s
Form of Place of of issued and effective Held by a
business incorporation paid up capital interest ~ Held by the  subsidiary Principal
Name of associate structure and operation BRR r5E Company KEAR activities
BENRAR EbE BEny BRRAZHE AYER RAKR ¥E  IEEE

Cheung Fung Incorporated Hong Kong 100,000,000 Class A 45.75% 45.75% Investment Holding
Technology F i (non-voting) shares RARR
(Holdings) Limited of HK$0.50 each
(“Cheung Fung’) and 200,000,000

HENE (£8) Class B Shares of
ARAT HK$0.50 each
([#2]) 100,000,0008% A% (&%

ZE) BREYSAR
—ERBRERAELSA

Sichuan Jinfeng Incorporated The PRC RMB208,000,000 27.42% 45.75% Manufacturing
Paper Company Rl i AR 208,000,000 and sale of
Limited cigarette paper
(“Jinfeng’) RERHEEESR

PG EHEARAR
(%))

Victory Will Limited Incorporated Hong Kong 12,000,000 Class A 45.75% 45.75% Investment holding
(“Victory Will") ) &k (non-voting) shares RARR
ALERAT of US$1 each and
(T8]) 2 Class B Shares
of US$1 each
12,000,00085 AR (&4
FR)BRETITR
ARBREJRETIT
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16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

16 HELQTRERE (@)

Summary financial information on associates BERNTANBERRBE
Equity/
Assets Liabilities (deficit) Revenues Loss
BE a8& & A &8
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
B B B B B
2007 —EEBLHE
100 per cent A5 2100 48,805 (794,888) (746,083) 127,319 (853,668)
Group’s effective AEEZ
interest B 22,328 (370,351)  (348,023) 58,248 (397,243)
2006 —EEAREF
100 per cent B2 2100 708,317 (592,758) 115,559 149,716 (2,485)
Group’s effective AEEZ
interest B &= 324,055 (271,187) 52,868 68,495 (1,137)

At 31st December 2007, bank loans totalled HK$646
million were granted by certain bankers to Jinfeng, a
subsidiary of Cheung Fung, and Sichuan Jinfeng
Innovation Industry Company Limited (“Innovation”), a
subsidiary of Jinfeng. These bank loans are secured
by certain land and buildings and machinery of Jinfeng
and corporate guarantees from Cheung Fung, Victory
Will and a minority shareholder of Jinfeng.

Subsequent to 31st December 2007, Jinfeng and
Innovation breached the financial covenants in respect
of these bank loans and defaulted repayment of these
bank loans. The relevant banks have commenced legal
proceedings against Jinfeng, Innovation, Victory Will
and the minority shareholder of Jinfeng to seek for
repayment of the bank loans together with the related
interest and penalty amounting to approximately HK$88
million. In addition, other banks and financial institutions
demand for loan repayments amounting to
approximately HK$551 million.

RIEZELFT_A=+—H FERTERTHEEZW
BRAARKENRBREZMBLARMIREAMEXERA
A([EIF ) 2 RITERAGHREK646BE T - RITH
RARE s RE T REF R URHFEE gL Rk
BEZLBBARRZ ARERELR -

RZZETZLFF+-_A=+—HUUE  BERAFERRE
TERZTBER%E  BRABEERITER - BETRAE
MR . BlE PO RBYE—DEBRERMAEAEFAR
FFr ABWZERTERERLREBEFNERIR €8
HEBEBSEEIL - BN BRI RMBEEIISK
BN ERERLYBESBIEE T ©

g |

>
<
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16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summary financial information on associates
(continued)

Up to the date of these financial statements, the legal
proceedings remain unresolved. The management of
Cheung Fung and its subsidiaries (“Cheung Fung
group”) is in negotiations with the relevant banks
regarding a restructuring in the terms and conditions
of the bank loans. The directors of Cheung Fung
consider that it is too early to conclude the likely
outcome of the legal proceedings and at this point in
time, it is not practicable to estimate its financial effect
on the financial statements of Cheung Fung group.

In view of the default in repayment of the bank loans
and subject to the results of the legal proceedings and
negotiations with the banks, the financial statements
of the Cheung Fung group for the year ended 31st
December 2007 have been prepared under a net
realisable value basis as the Cheung Fung group does
not have sufficient financial funds to continue its
operations as a going concern and to enable the
Cheung Fung group to meets its liabilities as and when
they fall due. The Group’s share of losses in 2007
exceeded its interests in the Cheung Fung group and,
accordingly, the interests in associates are reduced to
zero as at 31st December 2007. The directors of the
Company consider that recognition of further losses is
discontinued as the Group has not incurred any legal
or constructive obligations or make payments on behalf
of Cheung Fung group as at 31st December 2007.

16 HELQTRERE (@)
BEAAMBERRE (B)

BELEMYHRERAY  ZEFDRDARER - FERE
MEAR((FE2EE) v EREBLEREARITER - 15
KEBRTERZGREGHN HE2ESR/RMER
ARmARFRAaR2AEE  BRKMEFHEER
BMPBRER VB ETTIELR -

BRRRGEERERTERRINAFEEFRRERITE
TR ZER BRTFEREYERRUBESIALSE
BRBEREEELER AR ESETRE G B
BE HEKEREZE_FTTLHF+ _A=1T—HLFE
ZHBBRRERAWEHFELEERE - AEEN_-F
THFRHERBAENEESBE 2 #E - Bt - N8
BRAZBBE_TTLE+ _A=Z1T—BREZT - K
RAEZSRAREBERERE—TEE A/AKER_-F
FLFFT A=+ HABEBRREEREEL AR
HHEE B FEHNHIEA -
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17 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS 17 REMBATIREW FKHEBAF
DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES

The Company
P NN
2007
—EELHF
HK$
B

Unlisted shares, IE LR 212,923,030 139,558,985
at cost AR A BR
Less: impairment losses B R EEE (780,567) (780,567)

212,142,463 138,778,418

Dividends receivable JE U BT B
from subsidiaries NETN 9N 65,106,030

Amounts due =]
from subsidiaries NG 79,832,976 81,020,451

Less: impairment losses R EE R (37,734,536)

42,098,440 81,020,451

Amounts due to JE 1 B /B
subsidiaries NGNS (56,519,017)  (38,616,250)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, EWLKENKHBRARRHREEERR EEREEEE
interest free and repayable on demand. iE e
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BR B M &

17 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE 17 REKBLATREW THEZAT (&)
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of FEXREEBEZX4E -  EERABZMBARFEOT °
subsidiaries principally affected the results, assets or  BR4FRIZILE » FriE A 2 RIEA LR -

liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of
ownership interest

feEgRsl

Particulars of Group’s
issued and paid effective Held by a
Place of Place of up capital interest  Held by the  subsidiary Principal
Name of Company incorporation operation BEAR r5H Company WEAR  activities
RAEE EfbE Beny BRRAZHE ARER NAKR ¥E  TEER

Airborne Holdings British Virgin Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited Islands B 1RERRERIET holding
ABRLE REER

Appliance Science United States United States 958,500 shares of 83.51% 83.51%  Inactive
Corporation of America of America US$0.01 each g}
%8 %8 958,500/ X &R 5
S

Good Nature Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$10 each 100% 50% Inactive
Company Limited b i AREBRERI0ET g}
BERRAT

Good Nature Cook Islands Hong Kong 8 shares of US$1 each 100% 100% Investment
International MRS Bk 8L AR EBRIET holding
Limited RAHR

Guangzhou Conquest ~ The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing
Electric Company i i 1US$7,390,000 and sale of
Limited (note (i) 7,390,000% T electrical

ENRAFRES home appliances
BRAA (M) HERHERR

Mass Top British Virgin Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% 100% Property holding

Corporation Islands Bk 1REERERIZT RENE
EBRLS
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17 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE IS
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of Company
NEER

Place of
incorporation
EfbE

Place of
operation
meny

Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

Particulars of
issued and paid
up capital
BEAR
BRRAZHE

Proportion of
ownership interest

fragRsl

Group’s

effective

interest  Held by the
31| Company

RYNER RABE

Held by a
subsidiary
il P
t2:)

REMB AR REKR SKHELDQR @

Principal
activities
TEER

Raymond Electric
(China) Limited
NERERRE (HE)

ARAR

Raymond
International
Marketing
Corporation (note (i)

Raymond Marketing
Corporation of
North America

Raymond (Panyu
Nansha) Electrical
Appliances
Development
Co. Ltd. (note(i))

MR (FBEY)EH
ERERAA
(B ()

Raymond Nansha
Development
Co. Ltd.

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands
ZBRNS

United States
of America

Y]

The PRC
G

British Virgin
Islands

ABRLE

Hong Kong

United States
of America

*8

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

2 shares of HK$10
MREBRERI0ET

10 shares of US$1 each
10RERRERIZT

1,000 shares of US$1 each
1,000 REBRERIZT

Registered capital
US$22,000,000
14 22,000,000% 7T

2 shares of US$1 each
QREARERIER

100% 100%

100%

Investment
holding and
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17 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE 17 EMEBARKREWR {FHED R (@)
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: Bfat -

(i) The financial statements of Guangzhou Conquest (i) BENENRAEBHRERATARINE (BEEEY) BRER

Electric Company Limited and Raymond (Panyu BRAR B mMERZEREEFRIGHES - E&HEM
Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Co. ¥YSHMEEMERARERZ -
Limited for the financial year ended 31st December
2007, prepared under generally accepted accounting
principles applicable in the PRC, have been audited
by BMESSHMEHMERAA.

(ii) Raymond International Marketing Corporation has  (ii) Raymond International Marketing Corporationt & 5
ceased business operations and is in the process of AR ABREAMEET - ERMBEHRER -
application for deregistration. Up to the date of these B AR ©
financial statements, the deregistration has not been
completed.

18 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 18 REEBBRWNHIEH

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet (a) EEBEBXRZFBH
represents:

The Group The Company
rEH b NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—2ZtFE ZEEARF g3 3 ZETARF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Provision for the year (note 8(a)) 7~ E & & (f/:+8(a))
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBMER 107,055 8,310,409 - 8,200,000
— PRC income tax — B AT1E R 1,556,394 2,216,580 - -
________________________________ 1663449 10526989 - 8200000
(Over)/under-provision in EFEERE (F) /
prior years (note 8(a)) B (KiE8(a))
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBMEN 149,910 109,916 149,910 -
— PRC income tax — B PT1EH 8,448 (678,854) - -
— Tax refunded — iR (777,625) - - -
L (etemen  (oesw  taeg0 -
Taxrefunded &% mes . -
Provisional tax paid BEBH T
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BAMEN (110,409) (109,916) - -
— PRC income tax — BB (65,837) (36,924) - =
o uTeue gess) - -
1,645,561 9,811,211 149,910 8,200,000
Balance of profit tax TFEEE
provision relating to BB EerE
prior years 4,601,149  (3,331,533) 4,601,149  (3,598,851)
6,246,710 6,479,678 4,751,059 4,601,149




18 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised:

(i) The Group

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

18

(b)

(i) A%

i

REEEERNVAEHR ()

CRBEEHRAEEREE

AEERGEEERAERSTEER

EEBIR (B

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the E) " BELREZHZFBEOT ¢
movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of Other
the related temporary
depreciation differences
Deferred tax arising from: Tax loss HEER Hit Total
EEH2EER BHEBE ZREBIE SEER Chl
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B bk bk B
At 1st January 2006 RZTZERE—A—H (375,299) 7,335,258 5,738,151 12,698,110
Effect of change in HRBEyH s B
exchange rate = = 129,600 129,600
Charged/(credited) to EimFIskEE 2 Mk (GEA)
profit or loss 375,299 (1,074,872) 193,000 (506,573)
Over-provision in TEE 2 FARE
prior years - (3,610,647) - (3,610,647)
At 31st December 2006 RZEZERNEF+ZA=1+—8 - 2,649,739 6,060,751 8,710,490
At 1st January 2007 R-—Z2+t¥—-HF—H - 2,649,739 6,060,751 8,710,490
Effect of change in RegsHo e
exchange rate - - 14,361 14,361
Charged/(credited) to ERFREE 2B (FGFA)
profit or loss 53,681 (77,619) (6,547,911) (6,571,849)
Effect of change in tax rates B XZFH & 21,687 (134,488) (1,349,583) (1,462,384)
Effect of tax relief granted to S Bl i B 2 7 i &
PRC subsidiaries HER e - - 395,328 395,328
Over-provision in prior years T HE 2 FIth B (433,170) (218,601)  (1,344,275)  (1,996,046)
At 31st December 2007 R-ZBBLE+=-A=+—-H (357,802) 2,219,031 (2,771,329) (910,100)




Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (continued)

(i) The Group (continued)

At 31st December 2007, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of HK$4,586,000 (2006: HK$2,497,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profit against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. There is no expiry date for the
tax losses.

(i) The Company

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the balance sheet arise from depreciation allowances
in excess of the related depreciation. The movements
during the year are as follows:

18 REEEBEXRNFAEHR @

() ERIAEEHREBEERAEE:@ (B)

(i)  AEBEE)

R_ET+E+ A=+ AAEBREKRERERBH
BEHEARERHERARIE AIALA EREHN T IAK
RISEE - BMRERRIEEES%4,586,000T (=&
TN B¥2,497,0000T) I BEETREE - ZABERE
EEEERR -

(i) KRAE

AEERGREEABRSTEERZEERRARER
RERERRARBBENEREESH 2FBOT ¢

2007
—E2ELHF
HK$

B

At 1st January n—H—H
Credited to profit or loss
Effect of change in tax rates

Overprovision in prior years

R IET S LEDN
REEDYE
EEEZ FBEE

2,673,903 7,469,849
(93,276)  (4,795,946)
(147,375) -
(1,572) -

At 31st December

»+-—A=+—8H

2,431,680 2,673,903
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 18

(continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (continued)

() ERIAEEHREBEERAEE:@ (B)

The Group
rEHE

2007
—EELHF
HK$

B

2006
—ZEERF
HK$

B

REERBRNAEB (@

The Company
AT

2007
—EELHF
HK$
B

EEERMEAR
B R ZIET
BEFE

Net deferred tax asset
recognised on the
balance sheet

EEERMEAR
B HER BT
B{EFE

Net deferred tax liability
recognised on the
balance sheet

(4,222,780)

3,312,680

(100,360)

8,810,850

2,431,680

2,673,903

(910,100)

8,710,490

2,431,680

2,673,903

19 INVENTORIES

(a)

19 #FE

The Group
AEE

2007
ZETLF
HK$

B

The Company
PN

2007
ZETLF
HK$
B

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

61,987,998
37,713,705
3,809,283

89,631,870
12,082,304
606,023

10,920,422
3,221,913
72,269

10,816,959

245,783

103,510,986

102,320,197

14,214,604

11,062,742
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

19 INVENTORIES (continued) 19 FE@®@

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) TFESEZHNMCHERBERAMT :
recognised as an expense is as follows:

The Group
rEE
2007
—Z22tHF
HK$
B

Carrying amount of inventories sold FEHSERAE 762,742,127 831,858,154
Write down of inventories FERE 7,173,389 1,899,228
Write-off of inventories 75 MR 3,498,504

769,915,516 837,255,886

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 EZRHMEWKEKRE

The Group The Company
K& N
2007 2006 2007
—E2LF —ETRF —E2LHF
HK$ HK$ HK$

Trade debtors and BES5EBAR

bills receivable ZEEWERTE 113,066,088 130,446,857 104,498,596 123,029,458
Other debtors HMEB A 4,771,273 4,065,384 2,732,726 1,048,692
Deposits and prepayments HEE SN E 3,462,064 9,509,071 1,419,495 1,757,815

121,299,425 144,021,312 108,650,817 125,835,965

All trade and other receivables are expected to be FIEZ S REAMEWERBEIN —FERAIKE SERLSE
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. A -

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. FIREZBR AR  Annual Report 2007 £




20

(a)

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
debtors and bills receivables with the following ageing

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Ageing analysis

analysis as of the balance sheet date:

20 EZRHMEWEKRE (&)

(a) BRED

REERABREE

BAMEBRERBERBRZREOMWT ¢

BRESMNEMBKEERESE

The Group The Company
AEE P NN

2007 2006 2007 2006

—EELHF —EERF —EELHF ZEERF

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B JB M B JB

Current 7K 5 66,077,377 69,084,462 57,721,442 61,953,572
Less than one month wmE LR —EA

past due 29,377,902 35,540,123 29,377,902 35,265,104

1 to 3 months past due A —EAZ=1A 15,624,185 16,408,763 15,624,185 16,397,273
More than 3 months 0 2R 4R = @ A

but less than 12 months BLR+=@A

past due 1,806,988 9,399,502 1,595,431 9,399,502

Over 12 months past due BEBE T @A 179,636 14,007 179,636 14,007

Amounts past due wmEEA 46,988,711 61,362,395 46,777,154 61,075,886

113,066,088 130,446,857 104,498,596 123,029,458

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 to
60 days from the date of billing. Further details on the

Group’s credit policy are set out in note 28.

(b)

Impairment loss is written off against trade debtors
when recovery of the amount is remote. At 31st
December 2007, the Group's trade debtors of HK$Nil
(2006: HK$2,527,268) was determined to be impaired.
The impairment is written off against the trade debtors

Impairment of trade debtor and bills

receivable

directly.

BE5EBAREREUREAREAELIOEE60KAE

H o FBRHEANME28REBZEEBR ©

(b) EREZEZEHZAREBRRERRE

FEUBRIEDR E MR = A B BRIEAR K - R —TTLFR
ERYURBERERST (ZTTNF : 8%2,527,2687T) °
BB B R WOR TR O -



20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20

(continued)

Trade debtors and bills receivable that are (c)
not impaired

(c)

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills

S RHEMEWRE (&)

RARBREZEZEBARBRRERE

BZEBARBRERRBZREDMALBBOAE

receivable that are neither individually nor collectively #8%& EREW T :
considered to be impaired are as follows:
The Group The Company
rEH FANE|
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE —EEREF —EELHE —EERF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BB B JEE
Neither past due nor impaired % & %0 Hi sk J& (B 66,077,377 69,084,462 57,721,442 61,953,572
Less than 1 month past due  #H DR —1{EA 29,377,902 35,540,123 29,377,902 35,265,104
1 to 3 months past due BE—EAZ=EAH 15,624,185 16,408,763 15,624,185 16,397,273
More than 3 months but less %1 8B 38 = & A
than 12 months past due BLR+=@EAH 1,806,988 9,399,502 1,595,431 9,399,502
Over 12 months past due w1 B R B+ — & A 179,636 14,007 179,636 14,007
Amounts past due mH SR 46,988,711 61,362,395 46,777,154 61,075,886
113,066,088 130,446,857 104,498,596 123,029,458

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group and the Company.
Based on past experience, management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are
considered fully recoverable. The Group and the
Company does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

e

E B H E W R TR B 2
RuFce - REBELSR
BRBEERNSCRERER 28D AR B (L RE
Bl o ARERARRLEA AU F & HREMAKBER

FUWREREBNIRERRBOEL LB RCE

HENBUEFEEBRAFHA
EEEMREL

EREBYUEER



21  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BEFRHMENRERE
The Group The Company
rEH AA T

2007 2006 2007 2006

—EELHE 2T RF —EELHE ZETRF

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B B B B

Trade creditors 25 EEA 81,568,173 90,755,177 67,495,482 74,163,036
Accrued charges ENERR

and other payables H fib & 1 BR 18 33,802,283 65,088,453 13,657,807 39,354,870

115,370,456 155,843,630 81,153,289 113,517,906

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are

FIEE S MEMEMNKRER —FAXNHER /KA
BMERNE NEEABREEREREZREMEN

repayable on demand. Included in trade and other BRBE2ZEZHEEAZEREITAOT
payables are trade creditors with the following ageing
analysis as of the balance sheet date:
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELHF —EER —EELHE —EER
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Due within 1 month — & A A E
or on demand HIRE K 77,995,438 88,755,068 67,410,467 72,634,715
Due after 1 month but — @R &E
within 3 months =& A NEH 3,199,032 1,640,869 85,015 1,528,321
Due after 3 months —ER%&E
but within 12 months + =& A A A 118,089 103,626 - -
Due after 12 months + = 1@ A 1& E & 255,614 255,614 - =
81,568,173 90,755,177 67,495,482 74,163,036




22 PROVISION FOR FINANCIAL LOSS

22 BB LEE

The Group and
the Company

AEERAXDQT
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$ HK$
B B
At 1st January e 5 — 2 - -
Provision made during the year RE R B 7,800,000 -
At 31st December R+=—A=+—8 7,800,000 -
As at 31st December 2007, the Company issued a RZ-ZTZt+tF+_HA=+—H ' AR AHRE/T4H TIRE
corporate guarantee the extent of US$1,000,000 in (AR RZEE AR RELZHBEA 7)2%?&7% RAE
favour of a bank in order for Cheung Fung to provide % %83Z1,000,000% 02 A & &R (R K E16) °
security in respect of a bank loan made to Jinfeng, a
subsidiary of Cheung Fung (see note 16).
Subsequent to 31st December 2007, Jinfeng defaulted HN=—FZLF+—F=+—HN& - HLKH Ei%ﬁﬁﬁ
the repayment of these bank loan and the bank E @ RITEMERETARER REBEE_ZT+F
demanded the execution of such corporate guarantee. A AT HLEFEYBEBREERS %Ei B s

provision for financial loss amounted to HK$7,800,000
(approximately equivalent to US$1,000,000) was
recognised in the financial statements for the year ended
31st December 2007 as the financial loss is considered
by the directors of the Company to have incurred prior
to 31st December 2007 in light of the deterioration of
the Cheung Fung group’s financial position during the
year ended 31st December 2007 (see note 16).

23 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is
administered by an independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and the
eligible employees make monthly mandatory
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum
of HK$1,000 per month. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period.

7,800,0007C (4 HHE 1 oooooo%ﬂZEﬂ‘%Eﬂ%Z%&
> AABKRAREER ﬁm Z+H&E+-A=+—H
ﬁﬁg‘eiz,ﬁﬁ%réﬂé)}‘ﬁ Elzﬁﬂﬁﬂkﬂﬁ_jv
FEEMIIE -

23 REMKERIKEE

AEEREBATME LB BGI/RETBEMBIK
e EEMRE 2 BB RBIRHERHIEAE S S (138
Betdll))  ZREeAImBIETESER -

RIFBREEE - AEERESEREEYARE ARG
(SN %*%“riwﬂﬁﬂz}ﬁm - BRARERERF 5% AR
Bt AlF e ERDRERHEAES
%Mﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁrﬁ - B MR LR AT AE%1,0007T © FF
BHFERGIEH—BETREB -



23 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

In addition to the MPF Scheme, the employees of the
Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries, after completing half
a year of service, have the option to join the Group’s
defined contribution provident fund scheme which is
managed by an independent trustee. The Group makes
monthly contributions of 5%-10% of the employees’
basic salaries to the scheme depending on the
employees’ years of service with the Group. The
employees also make monthly contributions of 5% of
the employees’ basic salaries to the scheme. The
employees are entitled to receive their entire
contributions together with accrued interest thereon at
any time upon leaving the Group, and 100% of the
employer’s contributions and the accrued interest upon
retirement or leaving the Group after completing sixteen
years of service or at a reducing scale of between 5%
to 90% after completing three to fifteen years of service.
The forfeited contributions made by the Group and
related accrued interest can be used to reduce the
employer’s contributions. During the year, the aggregate
amount of employer’s contributions made by the Group
to this scheme was approximately HK$1,356,000 (2006:
HK$1,457,000). During the year, the total amount of
forfeited contributions, which are available to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group in future years,
was approximately HK$289,000 (2006: HK$3,000). At
31st December 2007, the Group’s contributions to the
provident fund scheme and the interest accrued thereon
amounted to approximately HK$24,053,000 (2006:
HK$24,949,000).

At 31st December 2007, certain employees of the
Group had completed the required number of years of
service under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”) and are eligible for long service
payments on termination of their employment. The
Group is only liable to make such payments when the
termination meets the required circumstances specified
in the Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is not
covered by the aforesaid provident funds. At 31st
December 2007, the Group’s contributions to the
provident funds and the accrued interest thereon
exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

23 FREMHRFBAKEE @

Bl gEests  AEEFEMNBLAREIEEASE
ETERANEA®EZ AJRENMAREBRZIEZB UG
RRABEBZAESE - AEERETIFERG TR
5%Z10%ER R AR - B TRIZEFH £ 5T1R5%1E
BETIHZK EETHEBE ZEIBTRLENEEZ2HE
THFREETNERIZFESERE A RIEICERNE o
RItEm+AFE  HGuRBE2HAHK - 1 ITER
—FE+RFE - ATREZ A HEKEIR5%E 90%A!
Ho BIBRBEWE IR ARERENETAERNA
Rl 2R o NFEAEER 2 HRAE 1,356,000 (=
TENF - B¥1,457,0000T) © AFERIREFET S
i A 72 2R 2 AR &2 B SR AR PR 2 8R40 /& 8 289,000
L (ZEENF  BH%3,000m) c R=ZZEZ+LF+A=
T—AAREEHAESHEEL Z2H#RENEREFENA
& 24,053,000 (ZEENF : 7 #24,949,0007T) ©

E-TTtE+-A=1+—R0 FAEEOBHEIHR
BEMDEEEBRMED ([EF)) 08T  EEER
xR 2 EHRBES - ATMELIEDIET 2 B
T AEEANZHEEARETTSZERETEX
NEEHRBEOEE -EFATARKHZETH
B AEER-_TT+E+-A=+—B AEELH
SHBTRE 2 KA SN EBREIEFIRT 2 BES

f& o



23 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes covering
its full-time PRC employees. The schemes are
administered by the relevant government authorities in
the PRC. The Group and the PRC employees are
required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated
under the requirements in the PRC and the relevant
government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC.

24 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st December 2007, the Group had unsecured
revolving banking facilities of HK$185,150,000 (2006:
HK$185,185,000). The banking facilities include
documentary letters of credit, trust receipt, bill payables,
trade loans, trade guarantee and overdraft. The amount
utilised by the Group as at 31st December 2007 under
the above facilities was HK$139,910 (2006:
HK$1,043,000).

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6th June 2003 whereby the directors of
the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite (i) directors, employees of any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder; (ii) holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Controlling Shareholder of the Company or any
company controlled by a Controlling Shareholder; and
(iii) (a) any business or joint venture partner, contractor,
agent or representative of, (b) any supplier of goods
or services to, or (c¢) any customer or distributor of
goods or service of, any member of the Group or any
Controlling Shareholder or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder; to take up options to subscribe
for shares of the Company. A nominal consideration of
HK$1.00 was paid by these participants for each lot of
share options granted. The options are exercisable from
the date of grant within a period of eight years. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company.

23 FREHKBAKEE @

AEEETHENMNBARFTERTREEAZBE TR
BRAREREE - HEFBRTBERFERMEE - A%
BEETHRUASREERAAFEZI —EADLIE
HBERR - A5 R T R e AR R AR 5 B 7R R B B BT A
ERAARARERETL ZRARBHMEL -

24 SRITEEHEE
—RRLEF A=+ A AEBARTESZE

75 #185,150,0007T) ° R1TZEEREE AR ERE
EEkE  EBNEE ZE5E3  BHERMET -
BHIDREEEE Y ABE139,910T (ZEZT N F B
#1,043,0007T) °

25 REHEECUROGAEH#RIEHE

ARAR—ZTZTRFANANARLERESE - AR F
EFRIBERMERERT()VAEBERMKE AR RIAR
Al 2R AR (MERRARR ) SHERR RSl 2 A7) 2
B EE: (IBEAEEMEMAKE  ERERRHZER
BRAZEGSZARMABETZEAZLZZIHBEA K
(i) (@ERMEBHEERHE  ABH  RERALER X
O)YEAEmARBFEER  H(c)ERNTS LD HER
Ty 7R £R BT AR A B 345 i i 3R 3k pl 22 B RSCR #E ll 2 (Ee)
NA G ITEBRERBAQAIRE - 27 AL WEKA
TTZREAXNBES —HERE - BRETEHRE
BREBRFNER - B—BRETHEAZENREAR
DA —RRE B RAAE -



25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that
existed during the year are as follows, whereby
all options are settled by physical delivery of

25 EmBTUROGAEREE (@)

(a) EAXRFERTZERMT - HIAAEBERELE
MR Z BRIEELR -

shares:
Contractual life
Number of of options
instruments 8 IR R
ITEEE ZAHEH
Options granted to directors: BREXTES :
— on 21st June 2005 —RZETERFAA=Z+—H 10,660,000 8 years®F
Options granted to employees: BREXTES
— on 21st June 2005 —-RZZEERFAA=Z+—H 6,371,000 8 years®
Options granted to other EBRERTEEBAL
eligible persons
— on 21st June 2005 —-R-_EERFANA-_+—H 770,000 8 years®
Total share options 42 BE % e 17,801,000

(b) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:

(b) BEREZBERNEFHITEENLT :

2007 2006
—EBELE ZTTRF

Weighted Number Weighted Number

average of average of

exercise price options exercise price options

g4 B R AT BB R

THE ZHE IR E ZEE

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Outstanding at the beginning BRI ARAITIE

of the period 1.852 1,852 2.286 17,801

Exercised during the period AN EBFE AT E - - 2.269 (15,784)

Forfeited during the period 7K B A 2K 3K 2.425 (637) 2.425 (165)

Outstanding at the end of the period IR ARITIE 2.425 1,215 2.425 1,852
Exercisable at the end of the period HIREITE

2.425 5,500 2.425 1,852



25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:
(continued)

The options outstanding at 31st December 2007 had
an exercise price of HK$2.425 (2006: HK$2.425) and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.5
years (2006: 6.5 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

25 REZEFURGCAE®RIERH @)

(b) BEREZBERNEFHITEEOT @ (&)

RIBE+EFE+_A=1+—BARTEBREZTEEBR
B2 42570 (ZEENF : B¥E2.4257T) M nEFH &
TROFHR55F (ZTTNF : 6.5%F)

(c) BREZAFEERRR

AEEBREMEX 2RB 2 A FHEDSEMRELER
BAFEME FAREBREZGEH R FEDRESR
BAFE BEREZENFHNER/LERA 28 A
He BHRETETEAREHRN -

BREZ A TFEERR

2007 and 2006
“ERLER-BEAS

Fair value at measurement date I
Share price %

Exercise price

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility used in the
modelling under Black Scholes model)

Option life (expressed as weighted
average volatility used in the modelling
under Black Scholes model)

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate

HERMZAFME

TTEE
TBERIE (AEHEANET
AR TE BT A hn 4 S 19K 18 3R OR)

HK$0.3884/% 7T
HK$2.40005% 7T
HK$2.42505% 7T

8.46%
BEREFH (UE&EXBETR
TE BT A I SE 39 R 1R R R)
2 years®F
TE BRI AR B 6.80%
% [ B ) = 3.28%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.

TEHDR IR T 1B R 08 (IR B A e 2 i 7 19 /&5 & HisT
8)HE - UHRBEARASEMEYRRKIEOERE
BELAE  BHRSENREEZREFE - TBAR
REBBZEHAIHAFEZMAFERNEATE -

BhEzRBETSRLL BEE -



CAPITAL AND RESERVES

The Group

Notes to the Financial Statements

Share Share  Exchange
capital premium reserve
Bx BREEE EREE
HK$ HKS$ HK$
it BE EE

The PRC

statutory

Capital  Retained reserve
reserve  earnings 7
BAfE  RRRN  EERE
HK$ HK$ HK$
B EE it

Other Total
reserve equity
Hfpk A ER
HK$ HK$
EE bt

At 1st January 2006
Appropriation to the PRC
statutory reserve
Dividends approved in
respect of the
- previous year
- current year
Exchange difference on translation
of financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries
Share of exchange reserve
of associates
Shares issued under
share option scheme
Profit for the year

R-Z2AE-A-H
REARE
FEER
BHER S

-HR

-kF
RE{LENE
AW B RR
ZERER
EBEAT
ZES R
REREM

26(d) (i)

12(c)

189,040,442 151,294,899 1,785,922

15,486,224

782,739

7,892,000 28,454,335

3,696,104 515,072,816 21,626,547

- (2,149,285) 2,149,255

- (040,257,579)
- (19,693.244)

(537,635) .
- 48,234,066

(757,396) 881,759,334

- (040,257,579)

- (19,693,.244)

15,486,224

782,739

35,808,700
48,234,066

At 31st December 2006

196,932,442 179,749,234 18,054,885

3,158,469 301,206,804 23,775,802

(757,396) 722,120,240
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B MY &F

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) BARE@HE &
The Group (continued) rEE (8

The PRC

statutory
Share Share  Exchange Capital  Retained reserve Other Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings E reserve equity
ke RARE ENRR  RARE  REEA EREE  ERRE  AfER
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AR BE BE BE BE BE BE BE

At 1st January 2007 W=E5+t£-A-H 196,932,442 179,749,234 18,054,885 3,158,469 301,206,804 23,775,802 (757,396) 722,120,240
Appropriation to the PRC mEDATE H R

statutory reserve 26(d)(iv) - (2,102,554) 2,102,554
Dividends approved in BERS

respect of the

~ previous year ~R 12(c) - (82,711,625) (82,711,625)

~ current year -K%F 12(c) - (19,693,244) (19,693,244)
Exchange difference on translation Rt 5 50 i B

of financial statements RAMSBRE

of overseas subsidiaries LERER 19,681,316 19,681,316
Realisation of capital reserve upon & i 72 &] 1 $4:£

deregistration of subsidiaries MEREARKE (3,079,972) 3,079,972
Realisation of exchange reserve  EHBEAF

upon written off of interests BaMENER

in associate ERREE (2,549,073) - 1,791,677 757,396 -
Cancellation of share options B RE - (31,329) - - (31,329)
Loss for the year 518 - - (45,494,543) - (45,494,543)

At 31st December 2007
196,932,442 179,749,234 35,187,128 47,168 156,076,487 25,878,356 - 593,870,815

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. FIRE#BBR /AR  Annual Report 2007 F




Notes to the Financial Statements

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 26 BARFEE @
(b) The Company (b) ZAAT

Share Share Retained Capital Total
capital premium earnings reserve equity
B RAEE REEA XA ERE §:
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

At 1st January 2006 RZBER$—-A—A 189,040,442 151,294,899 486,013,648 616,132 826,965,121
Shares issued under R R T 2172 R B

share option scheme 7,892,000 28,454,335 (537,635) 35,808,700
Dividends approved in HAERS

respect of the

- previous year K (240,257,579) (240,257,579)

— current year -AE (19,693,244) (19,693,244
Profit for the year REER 55,295,612 55,295,612

At 31st December 2006 RZEEx E+-A=1+—H 196,932,442 179,749,234 281,358,437 658,118,610

At 1st January 2007 RZZE5+5-A-A 196,932,442 179,749,234 281,358,437 658,118,610
Dividends approved BAERS

in respect of the

- previous year —fFR (82,711,625) (82,711,625)

~ current year -AF (19,693,244) (19,693,244)
Cancellation of HUH B R

share options - (31,329) (31,329)
Loss for the year TEER (21,355,814) - (21,355,814)

At 31st December 2007 RZFELET-A=1-H 196,932,442 179,749,234 157,597,754 47,168 534,326,598

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. RIRE%BR A"  Annual Report 2007 F &




Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 26 RARf®EEE
(c) Share capital (c) mE=&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) FEER B ETRA

2007
—EELHF
Number of Number of
shares shares

REHE ; EgE

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of BREBAHA
HK$0.50 each LB 1,000,000,000 500,000,000 1,000,000,000 500,000,000

Ordinary share, ZHER BR8T
issued and fully paid: R#R:

At 1st January n—H—H 393,864,884 196,932,442 378,080,884 189,040,442
Shares issued under A i A% 4
share option scheme BT 2 PR A 15,784,000 7,892,000

At 31st December R+=—H=+—H 393,864,884 196,932,442 393,864,884 196,932,442

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive EBBRFAABETKBMASTIEORE @ WHERAN
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled SE & FIEER—"ZERERR - FIETBEREAEE
to one vote per share at meetings of the Group. All F%EEFE ARSI -

ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Group’s

residual assets.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. FIRE#BBR /AR  Annual Report 2007 F




26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i) Shares issued under share options scheme
The details of the shares issued under share option
scheme during the year ended 31st December 2006

were as follows:

Date of exercise

AR #E E
(c) mBA&(E)

26

(i) B E T2 RE

RIZBZERFT_A=+—HREBRESEMET 2K
BHFRWT

Number of shares

TERH RESE
16th February 2006 —EERFA+~H 410,000
23rd February 2006 —EERF-A=+=H 160,000
2nd March 2006 —EEXRF=ZA_H 60,000
9th March 2006 —EERF=ZANB 270,000
10th March 2006 —ETXF=A+AH 3,100,000
16th March 2006 ZEERF=RA+~H 320,000
23rd March 2006 —EERFE=A=+=H 290,000
30th March 2006 —EERFE=RA=+H 446,000
6th April 2006 —EEXRFMNANE 1,005,000
13th April 2006 —EEXEFNA+=AH 480,000
27th April 2006 —EZEXFNA=1++H 2,140,000
4th May 2006 —EEXRFRAMA 645,000
11th May 2006 —EERFRAT—H 508,000
18th May 2006 —EERFRATNA 810,000
25th May 2006 —EERFRA-_T+HA 5,140,000

15,784,000

During the year ended 31st December 2006, options
were exercised to subscribe for 15,784,000 ordinary
shares in the Company at a consideration of 35,808,700
of which HK$7,892,000 was credited to share capital
and the balance of HK$27,916,700 was credited to the
share premium account. HK$537,635 has been
transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in
note 2(l)(ii).

R-ZEEXNEF+_A=Z+—HI > TEEREREAD
7)15,784,000% i ¥ ~ X & & & % 35,808,700 T H A 7%
#57,892,000 T 5T A B AR & #4258 75 %27,91 6,7007TET AR
RmEBERE - REBEER T EEK E2()(i) B
537,635 TEHENREERERANEERE -



26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Share capital (continued)

(iii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at balance sheet date

26 BAREE®
(c) MZA&(E)
(i) REEBREBAZKIBRKTIENBERE

2007 2006
Exercise Number Number
Exercise period price —EELE —EERF
75 TEE gE H=
HK$
BB
21st June 2005 to 5th June 2013 —ZEERF A= +—H 2.425 1,215,000 1,852,000

E-_F—=%,"AAAH

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these
options are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium reserve

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(ii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprise of all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with accounting policies set out in
note 2(p).

(iii)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(1)(ii).

REABRAE-RERERBE-BRARAEER - A
EBREFIEHN AN B RENE25

(dy REZHEERBEN
(i) BRAEAZEFE

S ERBREIGDIFA8HBEEMEAZRANGERE -

XK

(i)  FER B

T 34, 5 185 045 0 B2 MO8 S B2 75 2 B 75 3R 45 B0 S WA 34
2R o HIBIR B RN G H ER N E2(p) R -

(iii) BRI GE1E

P 7R (o s B2 5 T AR AR 9B & T R SR BT RE 2(1) (i) BR 4 DA B AR
REBRZTHBETRARERE CEEXMAF RITEBRE
HENATHE-



26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the
PRC enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, which are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises, are required to allocate at least 10% of
their after-tax profit but before dividend distribution to
the general reserve until the reserve has reached 50%
of their registered capital. The general reserve can
only be used, upon approval by the relevant authority,
to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
Appropriation to general reserve during the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,103,000 (2006:
HK$2,149,000). The enterprise expansion fund can only
be used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. Appropriation to enterprise expansion
fund is at the discretion of the board of directors of the
PRC subsidiaries. There was no appropriation during
the year (2006: HK$N:il).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used for
the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees.
Appropriation to the staff welfare and bonus fund is at
the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. For Hong Kong reporting purposes, this
appropriation is charged to expenses and included in
creditors and accrued charges in the consolidated
financial statements.

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31st December 2007, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was HK$157,597,754 (2006:
HK$281,358,437). After the balance sheet date the
directors proposed a final dividend and a special
dividend of 1 HK cent per ordinary share (2006: 11 HK
cents per ordinary share) and 20 HK cents per ordinary
share (2006: 10 HK cents per ordinary share)
respectively, amounting to HK$3,938,648 and
HK$78,772,977 respectively (2006: HK$43,325,137 and
HK$39,386,488 respectively). These dividends have not
been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.

26 BAREE®
(d FEEZHERBEWN @)
(iv) FEETEME

RRAFEARKMBEZRRREHEEZER  AE
BezrBENBARBIABELER  AEKRID10%D L
MEBMOIEINEBHFRE BEEXFEEIMELN
50%m1k - EBRFEHEANKCABERItERNEHERE
BRIEMER - AFEHIEELEBREIBBRORLE
#2,103,000T (ZZTT R : 5%2,149,0007T) (B %
FRESRUKLEHERBLERNEMER - SELHI B
XBRRESCZBFHZETENBRARZEZTRBTR
EoAFERENE (ZTFTRF : E) -

BITRMMRECAEZSRAAEZTBEMNBARE T Z2®M
ZHR e DERFBIEMNREAES 2 BB ZEH KN
BRARIZEERBITRE - SEBREHT  ZEFE
REEMBEHRERPHER - LIHERMKRIEKE R
B o

(e) WoEME

RIEELF+-_A=1+—HRE:FUDEERRFKE
IS E A B E157,597,754L (Z 2T NF B
281,358,4377L) - REEBBXREFE AR  EFH 5
BREARPESRETABBEA (T RF 3BT
BRAEIUD) KRR E SR T BRBE200L (Z2F
NE BRTEKBEA0M) - 55D BB 3,938,648
TERBMT8TI297TTT (ZEENFE : DRl ABE
43,325,137 & /5 1£39,386,4887T) - NEEBBEREE
AEEREARERBEE -



26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(f) Capital management

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes trade
and other payables and provision for financial loss)
plus unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During 2007, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2006, was to maintain the net debt-to
adjusted capital ratio at the lower end of the range
35% to 40%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets
to reduce debt.

26 BAREE®
(fH EBEERE

AEBZEREBRREERAUREBASE 2 #EZE
ZBETT - DA(E EL BE #F 48 A SR B2 1 [0 o K Ay EL Al AH B A
THREMZE - LERERRERRKFERZHERERE &
NEEKRALEERES -

AEBETHREHRITEEAEBUES FESEHRAR
R RERZERHEABEELNNRI - RELBERBR T E
HEERNGEERDBE 2 HE -

BITEED - AEESNFEBEHLSABREAR L E
RELEREEARRE - plit - ARERBEAE (BREE
7 R EAD BT ARIA K B ISR R BE) 0T R 2 3R 3 X
B RAREABEMAEDSRTEFERRERE

RIZBTLF  AEEZRKBUOR_ZTERF K &
MREFEEEABRANLL IR &KEKFI5%E
40% ° /3 TR HFELLLY - AEB A REABRRERIRMS T
BREZBE ~ BITHKR - REKRATERR - &8&8#H2E
ERERHNEEEARDER -
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 26

() Capital management (continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31st December R _ZEZRNFER_ZTZT+F+_A=+—HZ FEEHR

2007 and 2006 was as follows: KAERAALEFAT

The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELHE —ZEER —EELE —ETR
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Current liabilities: mEAE
Trade and other Z5RHEAM

payables e BRI 115,370,456 155,843,630 81,153,289 113,517,906
Provision for financial loss 817518 k& {5 7,800,000 = 7,800,000 =
Add: Proposed dividends il : &Ik ERE 82,711,625 82,711,625 82,711,625 82,711,625
Net debt BEFE 205,882,081 238,555,255 171,664,914 196,229,531
Total equity 48 e 593,870,815 722,120,240 534,326,598 658,118,610

Less: Proposed dividends

R R S

(82,711,625)

(82,711,625)

(82,711,625)

(82,711,625)

Adjusted capital BRBER 511,159,190 639,408,615 451,614,973 575,406,985
Net debt-to-adjusted EEEFE
capital ratio % 75 69 73 e Bl 40% 37% 38% 34%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are AR aRHEWEB ARSI SZINRAKERE KA

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

2
=



27 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitment outstanding at 31st
December 2007 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

27 EiE

(@) RIZEZLF+-A=1+—BRNEREEELE
BRELBERBEDOT

The Group The Company
rEE FINUNES|
2007 2006 2007 2006
—BELE ZETREF —EELE —EERF
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
B B B B
Contracted for B &4
— Construction work —RETRE - 905,860 - -
Authorised but not B KRB L
contracted for
— Capital injection —EEE
into a subsidiary B 8 A 7] 46,800,000 130,104,000 46,800,000 130,104,000
46,800,000 131,009,860 46,800,000 130,104,000
(b) At 31st December 2007, the total future minimum (b) R-ZEZTtF+-_A=+—8  ESTAEHE

lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

ZEEHEMR AR 2 ZEBLELOT ¢

The Group The Company
rEH b N
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELHE —ZETR e 3 —ETRF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Within 1 year —F R - - 300,000 300,000

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land held
under operating leases are described in note 15(c).

Apart from these leases, the Group was the lessee in
respect of a property held under operating lease in
2006. The lease typically runs for an initial period of
one year, with an option to renew the lease when all
terms were renegotiated. None of the leases included
contingent rentals.

TEHEMZANKEHEREZ L EFHINMF
15(c) °

BRLEAMEE  E_TEANEFAREREHERIEZIYE
MEP - BHNEEEARBZEF  AREEHHEOK
BRaHSEK® - REENEEEXAES -



27 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c) At 31st December 2007, the total future minimum
royalty payments under a license agreement are
payable as follows:

27  EAIE (B

(c) RZETLF+_RA=+—H8 BAEFAHEmE
M2 RRZEXNEMEMOT

The Group and the Company

AEBEREAT
2007 2006
—EELHF TEERF
HK$ HK$
B JB I
Within 1 year —%F R 780,000 =

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price
risk arising from its equity investments in other entities
and movements in its own equity share price.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents are normally placed at
financial institutions that have sound credit rating.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 60 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

28 £®WTIA

8 B2 MERINERBRENAEEN—K
XBERPELE - ARBRBARERSE —©X3IH
BEBEREREEATREZD -

EUERBREXAEENMBERBRRELER (BT M
BR e

(a) FERRK

AEENEERRIEXRBEES REMBEFBELT S
EFEEEERR ReMREFEEBER —REAREE
REZoHEE EEEAMENGEERR  LeFE
ERMAZHNERERR -

AEZMEMEBUFEMS - BRABERKBBE TE
BB BT ETENEEN G - HEFHERE
HEXAIMRZERLELREHNENESD XEE
BENENEHNEBEMENEERENER - E5E
WHIEHEHREE BE30-60ANEH - Ba—AZ
EWR R DR 2BBESTAER TEMEME
E-AEE-RITEAFPWIERR -



28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk
but to a lesser extent. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as
20% (2006: 24%) and 67% (2006: 57%) of the total
trade and other receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset, in the
balance sheet.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

28 ®IEA®
(a) fRFERREGE

AEBEEcEERR  TEXZEPZERNSEM
FE BPREMEZOREABRZBERARTEER
ERk  HFERYRD  REER  ARENAEKRE
FHEESMEMBKKIE20%(ZTTRF : 24%) &
67%(ZFTRF : 57%) * AR —EREMNEEET
R -

RANERERECEEERBER LAMENEREERE
ERER ZREE -

(b) EERBMEEME

AEEBENZENEBEREASESBREEERE -
EREHASCAEBREMEMNERABRNRESZHER - &
SECsBRAREHEERT RERRBER K - NHE
FREGKEHRSFEBELIAREESER 285 - L&
AEEHLEMRHERK -



28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28 €@ IAE®
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (by EE&RBHERRE (E)
The following table details the remaining contractual T2 5! i AR & & K AR A *Zﬁffﬁiﬁﬁ\ﬁﬁg EREEH
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s ZHTANHRFR - EEENAGN LARARR LA
and the Company’s financial liabilities which are based & (BERBELHITE ZFE - KNZFHH KB ENEE
on the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including H ' 5 HZFE) EAKEEAR A HEFTEERN 2 HH
interest payments, computed rising contractual rates &% :
or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay:
(i) The Group (i) A&EH
2007 2006
ZBELF ZETRE
Total Total
contractual as Within contractual as Within
discounted 6 months discounted 6 months
cash flow or on cash flow oron
Carrying BHRaHN demand Carrying BEREND demand
amount HRERR ~MEARZ amount GIRREEE) N EREEAE
REE Z2BeR  ERERE REE ZBRER EREHE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BETT BETTT BB BT
Trade and other payables B REMEMNER 115,370 115,370 115,370 155,844 155,844 155,844
Provision for financial loss R LB 7,800 7,800 7,800 = = =
123,170 123,170 123,170 155,844 155,844 155,844
(i) The Company (ii) Ko a]
2007 2006
ZBELF ZETRF
Total Total
contractual as Within contractual as Within
discounted 6 months discounted 6 months
cash flow or on cash flow oron
Carrying BHREH demand Carrying B R demand
amount HRERER ~MEARZ amount MREHR N ERERAE
RAR 2BEF  BREFE RHEfE ZBRER BREHE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BEFT BEFT BB BETFTT
Trade and other payables BHREMEMNERE 81,153 81,153 81,153 113,518 113,518 113,518
Provision for financial loss MEELRE 7,800 7,800 7,800 = = =
Amount due to subsidiaries ERHTE A A 56,519 56,519 56,519 38,616 38,616 38,616
145,472 145,472 145,472 152,134 152,134 152,134
In order to manage the above liquidity demands, at ﬁ%%?%fﬁtﬂéi//|b§bmx RZTEZELF+=A=

31st December 2007, HK$305,371,471 (2006:
HK$383,106,968) and HK$296,261,660 (2006:
HK$372,144,202) of the Group’s and the Company’s
assets respectively were held as cash that are
considered readily realisable.

+—H AEERAR %Uﬁ*ﬁ‘f@«%ﬂtffﬁzfﬁi
7,%5%%1%305,371,47175(:22/#- 75 #383,106,968
L) N8 ¥ 296,261,660 (T N F : B
372,144,2027%) ©



28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from cash and cash equivalents which were
contracted at short-term variable rates and expose the
Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate profile
as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

28 ©®IEA W@
(c) FEE
AEEZNEREBREIRRE LRSS FEINTEERZES

FEREIBHAEERADTERSRE A KR - A%
B2 R R AR LT

The Group The Company
X%E AN
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE —ZERE “EZLE ZETRF
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate rate rate rate
BERA%E BIRF & BERF*E BB F %
% HK$000 %  HK$'000 % HK$’000 %  HK$000
BETT BEFT BETT BEFT
Variable rate bank deposits BATHERTE 49 305,371 7.9 383,107 50 296,262 8.1 372,144
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BT
At 31st December 2007, it is estimated that a general R -_ZEZ+F+-_A=+—HEMBEEME (LA =4

increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s and the Company’s (loss)/profit
after tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$3,054,000 (2006: HK$3,831,000) and HK$2,963,000
(2006: HK$3,721,000) respectively. Other components
of equity would not be affected (2006: HK$Nil) by the
changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2006.

NEEIER T ¢ R — AR FI RN, 410025 F
BRI L EMAEBEARRZEREE (B1B) i
R B 7 5 B B £ 5 Bl 78 % 3,054,000 (ZTZ/NF ¢

75 #3,831,0007T) K& 2,963,000 (ZZEZNF ¢ B
#3,721,00070) - EMES I IF REFHZEZE (=
TRE: BEZTIT) -

NWERNBRESTEBRRFEEHERNEEHLEME

R WERARMNZAMES KB ITERIETEMB
TAZAMEXRAR - 100H FIE MM DIEEEBHES
T—EFEEERPB XA BEESH 2 E - D
TR-_BENFHEBZELEETT -



28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk
(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars and
British Pound.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(iii)  The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which

28 ©®IEA W@
(d) E¥ER
(i)  HEREG

AEEETEHNUZFELEXBIEEH U Z G
BzHESBWAMAEAEINERR - BRERRER 2GR

(i) EEIEEREE

ERNNERZIEEBAINZERBREZHMBE ZEWK
NEMNFIE  AEBSENGZRERMNERON S FERE - A
REEXRBEARBEHINE  BERFZESEFTE @R
BEXONREE -

{ H R FER LR s R AT

(i)  TRINFAEEREE
S KIEMEEXREMA®T

BEEBASIM—BE
HHEERR -

they relate.
The Group The Company
rEE YN
2007 2006 2007 2006
g 3 Z2TRE ZBRLF Z2TRF
United United United United

States British States British States British States British

dollars Pound dollars Pound  dollars Pound dollars Pound

'000 ’000 ‘000 ‘000 000 000 ‘000 ‘000

Enfrn RETHE ExTrn RHETHE Exfrn RETHE Znfr EHTH

Trade and other receivables EZREMEUWEE 12,966 305 15,310 278 12,837 305 15,281 278

Cash and cash equivalents H&RKRE&EEEE 36,730 211 39,705 278 36,730 211 39,705 278

Trade and other payables B2LEMEREE  (4,072) - (3,489 (6) (4,071) - (3,489 (6)
Net exposure arising from  HERZEER
recognised assets and B EMEFE

liabilities 45,624 516 51,526 550 45,496 516 51,497 550




28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s and the Company’s (loss)/profit after

28 ©®IEA W@

(d) E¥EREE

(iv) BEEEDHT
TREBASBLRARAREEAMAXEANRR ZE

o 15k

$Z/—\IET%K@J;T BRELR B 1R R R AR B BRI E K

tax and retained earnings in response to reasonably 2 47 &
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the balance sheet
date.
The Group The Company
*&H |
2007 2006 2007 2006
“ERLE ZEZRRE “ERLE “ETRE
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
Increase/ loss after  Increase/ profit after  Increase/ loss after  Increase/ profit after
(decrease) tax and (decrease) taxand (decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and
in foreign  retained  in foreign retained in foreign  retained in foreign retained
exchange profits  exchange profits ~ exchange profits  exchange profits
rate  HEH#E rate  HRHE rate  HBHE rate  HERHE
Exgh/ FERRE Exgn/ EHRRE Exgn/ FERRE EXEnN/ &fRRE
(H) BHzEE (RD) BHzZE (H) BHzEE (A2) BHz¥E
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETFT BETT BETT
United States dollars e 5% 14,680 5% 16,578 5% 14,638 5% 16,569
(5)% (14,680) (5)% (16,578) (5)% (14,638) (5)% (16,569)
British Pound 373 5% 331 5% 347 5% 331 5% 347
(5)% (331) (5)% (347) (5)% (331) (5)% (347)
Sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that S E 5 *ﬁTJTEiZQI: EXSHRNEFAEE  WEARSE
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at ESEERRZBNGEEZETESRIEMAZZE
the balance sheet date and had been applied to each # & - MATA EM Al A= (LEF ) REFAE -

of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.



28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and
the United States dollar would be materially unaffected
by any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the Group entities’
profit after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date
for presentation purposes. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2006.

(e) Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31st

December 2007 and 2006.

29 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

At 31st December 2007 and 2006, the Group and the
Company had no contingent assets and or liabilities.

28 ®IEA®
(d) E¥EREE
(iv) BBEDH (&)

ISP EEERBGAEXREE T —BEAFESAR
B AEAEES - plit - RRETALEZTZH
BEZXKIEAXTAREBEB ZEIMZERE
- LRAIIRZAOMERESEBEBZBH RGN
&E%%%E%&%ﬁEZETWf$WMJRﬁE%
TRt E 2R 2 @5 - BTN ERE — ST NFAH
RIE 2 EWAER -

(e) 2AFHE

ESRIEZARERRARN _TTLFR-_TERN
F+ZRA=1+—RHZAFEEEATRM -

29 BAREERERE

R-ZZFZERNER-_FTELFTA=1+—H AKEK
ARARRBUREERARE -



Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
group are the company’s directors as disclosed in note
9 and the highest paid employees as disclosed in note
10, is as follows:

30 BBEZEAXRERER

(a) FEEEEBEAEME

TREREASMEBREXNARRES (RHEIRE)
RETESHER (NME10KE) 228 -

2007
—EELF
HK$

B

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

1% 18 F 8 7

REEB B

5,994,883
243,000

5,781,638
216,000

6,237,883 5,997,638

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
7(a)).

(b) Financing arrangement

—22tF

HRENEREE TRARERMET@@)

The Group
AEE
2007

The Company
NN
2007
—EELHF
HK$
B

2006
—EERF
HK$

B

HK$
B

E SR E R A
(Ktat16)
—-X&

— BRI B

Loan to an associate
(note 16)
— Principal
— Interest receivable

8,500,000
938,646

8,500,000
533,210

8,500,000
938,646

8,500,000
533,210

9,438,646

9,033,210 9,438,646 9,033,210

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. FIRE#BBR /AR  Annual Report 2007 F




(c)

Notes to the Financial Statements
BR B M &

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)

Other related party transactions

During the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions:

30

(c)

ML 2EARSE K& (#)

HitpAt 5 H B

—ETLET=A=T—BI - ARERMESE R
TR

The Group
2007
—EELF
HK$

K&t B

Interest income from

an

Rental income from
a related company (note 6)
Purchase of motor vehicle

associate (note 6)

from directors

KERBZERA
Z BN (Hfite) (i)
KEREE T

ZHEEWA (Hfit6)
REEEEA=E

405,436 533,290

(ii) 120,000

(i) 350,000

Notes:

(i)

Interest income is received by the Group is connection
with the loan to an associate (note 16).

Rental income received from a related company, in
which Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, and Dr. Wong,
Kennedy Ying Ho, have beneficial interests in this
related company. Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is a
director of the company and Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying
Ho resigned as a director of the company on 13th
April 2007.

The Group purchased motor vehicles amounted to
HK$300,000 and HK$50,000 from the directors of the
company, Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang and Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, respectively.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
balance sheet and in notes 16 and 17.

Wiz

(i)

g

HE RN w2 M B WA (KFE16) °

KERBED ZHSBA  BXFELIRRARE LR
BREB AR BEES BB LIEARRESRK
ERFBIAE_TZLFOA T =—AHEARAES -

REESBRARAESTZLTH T RBLFLEEER
YR E & %8 300,000 M 78 #550,0007T ©

HRB L HERCEERBERZMFEI6RITRIRE -
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31 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
(i) Adjusting post balance sheet event

On 15th February 2008, the Group and the Company
incurred a financial loss amounted to HK$7,800,000
(approximately equivalent to US$1,000,000) in respect
of the execution of a corporate guarantee by a bank.
As detailed in note 22, a provision for this financial
loss amounted to HK$7,800,000 was recognised by
the Group and the Company in the financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 2007.

(ii) Non-adjusting post balance sheet event

After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed
final and special dividends. Further details disclosed
in note 12.

32 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, and the amendments to HKAS 1,
Presentation of financial statements: Capital
disclosures, certain comparative figures have been
adjusted to conform with changes in disclosures in the
current year and to show separately comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time
in 2007. Further details are disclosed in note 3.

Net exchange gain, tax refund from re-investment in a
subsidiary, sundry income and net loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, which are incidental to
the main revenue generating activities, were included
in as “Other revenue” and “General and administrative
expenses” in 2006 and the value-added tax payables
was included in “Current taxation” as at 31st December
2006. To conform with the current’'s year’s presentation,
income/expenses and other tax payables were
reclassified as “Other net (loss)/income” and “Trade
and other payables” respectively in the comparative
figures. The directors consider that this revised
presentation more appropriately reflects the nature of
these items.

31 EEBEBREEHE
() #RERBEHAE

R-ZZZENF_A+HAB  XEBREARAFRRITER
ZABERELMBERE% 7,800,000 (WHEFER
1,000,000%(7T) - AEBRARBREBE_TTLF+
“R=t—RUEFREZHMHRENEERE 7,800,000
T BB REREE IR E22) -

(i) THREERABRERSTHE

BERERGEERHR  EFEIRREZAHE LRIk
B BN H 12 -

32 HREHE

ERRABTEVBRELERNFTREH TR : HEFERK
FREGENE1RBF) MBHRRZ2HR - EARE -
ETUHBEFETHEUNEAFEZRERZS - UK
ETE_FTTLFERBREHRBZEANLKEAT - B
ABERKESHE -

EXWEFRE RNBERARZBRE MEABKARLE
ME - BERRBIERFEDIERDBAZESRZ
M&RE  RZFTRNFFFATEMYEE] MR R&TT
BRAX] R-ZEEXRF+-A=1+—H8 BNEENR
FATESRE] RHARFEZE2BARA - KA H
XERMNEMBHBEELRBEFTRIRNSBRIEM (&
8) /BAFEIRENESRERREMENIRS] - &
ERR MKEIE2MNAEABHRREFER 2
B o



33 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors
used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have
a significant impact on the Group’s financial position
and operating results. Some of the accounting policies
require the Group to apply estimates and judgements,
on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical
accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimation.

(b) Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, investments
in subsidiaries and interests in associates, recoverable
amount of the asset needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling
price and the value in sue. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted market prices
for these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to
items such as level of turnover and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of items such as turnover
and operating costs.

33 EEHfhE R HE

EERARNAKRE ZEERNTTA - A8 R H 4 A
SEZMBRANEEREAEATE - RESHHER
BRASEERGE RATE N EESH L - BRI
HEEBEASE 2 @ BERFIMAT ¢

(a) #HE

B A ENEREREENEHTEAENAE - %6
BRI YR SARNAERFHORBARKT B
B RRHTERN R ARG BRFOERL LT
B -

(b) RE

ZRIETYME BELERE RHEBRARZEERR
BeEnm DA RBERR  BETEEZAK
e - AR ERFEEREREEME LIRS
Eo-mARNILEEEZARTE TR FEHEE - BB N
EEMEAEE CEETCEREER  BEEMELZRE
HRESRENTREEZARAEE  MAREXRBKER
EERATHRFRBFLEZNG AREEEE SR
REAMBAERFSZEN MeBER/TROEELE
BfiNe®R EERBEAEREXFHZBRRLAAIESR
MERBEREBERAFMETBUE



33 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Impairments (continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

(c) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available
against which the unused tax credit can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

33 EFHETRHE @

(b) REE)

AEBEREEIEETEMETT 2R DT K 7] U@ 51 & &
REFRREERETIR ESRFAEEREFZEE
BREREBEREMNRERITE-—ERE 2 H/6H

bR E R R N OR 8 & B R K 2 M AR e

(c) FEH

BTMSHRBBIRBE TR RRRIEARIE 2 E R
MBRAUZ2E AEEFEHFIERZFZ2ERSHE
WRLRRRARE  ZSEXHIREARETIE HR
A AR RBIBEGIZFBEZE -

AT T IR A B T sl oK B (B B R HOR = R 2 B IR S 1R B
B AN ZFRELEHIEER BRI AR m M Al A
MABAERRERA B BE L @®R - BEEBAMNGER
RERT G N 2 AIgett - BB 2 b0 E BAmaTr - i
R &SRB A i A IR EEE R IR B E - QI SRR
SMEIETR R B E ©



33 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience and
judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

(e) Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted to employees measured by professional values
based on the Black Scholes model with modification to
reflect the impact of vesting period and exercise pattern
on the option value. The accuracy of the above
estimations could affect the amount of share-based
payments transactions recognised in the income
statement.

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31st December 2007 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

33 EFHETRHE @

(d FE&®

AEBERTEDRI BT ERR ST - AHRAHE -
ERERRAG I FEEAE - ERURE  EEEE
B 1 T A0 L £ B 3 R (AL 7 677 SOAE - B
BEERNEY  BIRHEHRUEHEEER U
T4 RIS 1A -

(e) UBROR/E#RXH

BETREZBREZ AFEMBFTIHAEXGEMZER
BAE  WEHEFTURRBREEESREBH N7
ERAZFE - bt EEEEAZEURN AER
XEXRZGEBRRRER ISR -

34 Z_ZZ+F+-HA=1+—-HLFE
EHEMBERERZERT FEARRE
ZEBERE

BEHEVBHRRTNEZR  BESAMASE RS
BEE] - HERRRE  BEREE_TTELF+_RA=
T—HLEFEMREN  BNMAREEREHRRER -



34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST DECEMBER
2007 (continued)

Of these developments, the following relate to matters
that may be relevant to the Group’s operations and
financial statements:

34 BE_SBELFI_A=T-HULEFE
CRMEREN 2B - HEARERRE
ZEREXE (W

FEELBEXT - MTRAEBBASE &% K55S
=

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RO R BMER
ZEHHE
FUREN
Amendment to  Presentation of financial statements: EREEHEANE N B HEBRRZER: 1st January 2009
HKAS 1 Comprehensive revision including requiring TERA BEHAE e =
a statement of comprehensive income TBIERER
HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial B LR F2TH GAEREACHBERE 1st July 2009
statements - consequential amendments -BERBRE ZZENELA-R
arising from amendments to HKFRS 3 EREIRBAEEER
HKAS 28 Investment in associates: consequential BB iR F28% REENRZRE  BEYE 1st July 2009
amendments arising from amendments to REEESRBIELEZET ZSEAELA-A
HKFRS 3
HKFRS 2 Share-based payment: Amendment relating AAVBREENER  URDAERLL  EHEE 1st January 2009
to vesting conditions and cancellations G pA H ZZENE-A-H
HKFRS 3 Business combinations: Comprehensive EANBREENEIR EBA0: RRNBEZTRER] 1st July 2009
revision on applying the acquisition method ZZENELA-A
HKFRS 8 Operating segments AN BaEERFLR 2ENH 1st January 2009
ZZENE-A-H

The directors have confirmed that the Group is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

EFCHAANKE L ERMLFERT - e L2
BEVGEERAMZEE - Lo 2RER/AERAULFE
Al R RES T ARBEZ S EXERMB
MAEREATE -



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

Five Years Financial Summar
EFEHMBEHE

2003
—ZEZT=

HK$°000
BETT

mERER

2004
—EEMF
HK$°000
HBET T

2005
—ETRF
HK$°000
BET T

2006

Rt £ I

HK$°000
BETTT

2007
ZE2TLE
HK$°000
BETT

Continuing operations
Turnover

BEREER
B 794,372

1,055,482

1,008,712

954,572

842,856

Profit/(loss) before taxation
and share of losses
of jointly controlled
entities and associates

Share of
losses of jointly
controlled entities

Share of losses of associates

BRI B B8
R AG B & R 7]
EBRIET (BH)
99,124

FiT 4 $E R 422 1
EREE

PGB = A BB B

(3,299)

(12,645)

(1,137)

(1,217)

(52,868)

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Income tax expense/(credit)

BRERIEA, (F8) 98,912

67,786

Fre®zd,/ (GEA)  (11,282) (12,583)

7,422

(2,056)

50,415

(5,567)

(54,085)

8,591

Profit/(loss) from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued
operations

BECLELZ
wH (EE) 87,630

BRILEEEXK
BERIEEEES
2 A 5,561

55,203

74,195

5,366

157,648

44,848

3,386

(45,494)

Profit/(loss) after taxation

BB BER (B8) 93,191

129,398

163,014

48,234

(45,494)

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of
the Company

Minority interests

AFER

NG S
83,990

9,201

123,546

5,852

161,018

1,996

(45,494)

93,191

129,398

163,014

48,234

(45,494)

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. RIRE#HBRAE Annual Report 2007 F 3§




Five Years Financial Summar
T EHBERE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERER

2003
—ZEZT=

HK$°000
BETT

2004
—EEMF
HK$°000
HBET T

2005
—ETRF
HK$°000
BET T

2006

2R

HK$°000
BETTT

2007
ZE2TLE
HK$°000
BETT

Goodwill

Property, plant and
equipment

Interests in leasehold land
held for own use under
operating leases

Investment properties

Interests in jointly
controlled entities

Interests in associates

Deferred tax assets

Net current assets

Non-current rental
deposit payables

Long-term bank loans

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets directly
associated with
discontinued operations

BE
mx - BB R

BREEEHE
BIEERZ
TinfEs

REMF

HEZEHERER

BERNEER
BEEHBEEE
REBEEFE

ERNFERBRALTE

RHRITEX
EEHAERE

ERHEERIERBAH

ZEE

8,094

492,887

14,430
300,000

31,450
161
37,829

(585)
(64,328)
(8,361)

514,012

14,326
385,762

28,116
152
7,523

(1,078)
(50,188)
(48,325)

195,110

14,133

53,222
152
147,733

(8,865)

480,274

188,888

14,019

52,868
100
475,055

179,173

4,223
399,466

(3,313)

Net assets

BEFE

811,577

850,300

881,759

722,120

593,870

Share capital
Reserves

LN
fe# 18

183,501
527,448

185,347
574,130

189,040
692,719

196,932
525,188

196,932
396,938

Total equity attributable
to equity shareholders
of the Company

Minority interests

AR RIBRFE(E
B

LR E R

710,949
100,628

759,477
90,823

881,759

722,120

593,870

Total equity

B

811,577

850,300

881,759

722,120

593,870
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